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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thirty SBeventh Annual General Mecting of the Members of
Frontier Capital Limited will be held on Thursday, 30® September, 2021 at 11.00 A.M. IST at
the registered office of the Company at 1303, Lodha Supremus, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower
Parel west, Mumbai - 400 013 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS -
1. ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTS:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 31= March, 2021 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors’
and Auditors’ thereon,

2. RETIRE BY ROTATION:

To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Usha Iyengar, Director [DIN: 03447551) who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

“RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Usha Iyengar, Director [DIN: 03447551}, who retire by rotation
in terms of Section 152 of Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible be and is hereby re-
appointed for the period of 3 years as a Non — Executive Director of the Company whose
oifice shall be liable to retirement by rotation”

SPECIAL BUSINESS -
3. RE-APPOINT ME. HEMENDRA NATH CHOUDHARY AS A WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR:

Mr. Hemendranath Choudhary was appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company
and ordinary resolution was passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 280
September, 2018 for the period of 3 years.

As Mr. Hemendranath Choudhary has attained the age of 70 year, the Company is
required to pass the Special Resolution under Section 196, 197 of the Company Act 2013,
for his re-appointment in the Company as a Whole — Titne Director.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 read with
Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 [*the Act”)
and Rules made thercunder (including any statutory modification(s] or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force), the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of
the Company and all applicable guidelines issued by the Central Government from time to
time and subject to such other approvals, as may be necessary, consent of the Members
be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr, H. N, Choudhary (DIN: 06641774} as the
Whoele-time Director of the Company for the period and upon the following terms and
conditions mcluding remuneration with further liberty to the Board of Directors of the
Company [hereinafter referred to as “the Board™ which term shall be deemed to include
any Committee constituted / to be constituted by the Board) from time to Hme to alter the
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said terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration of Mr, H. N, Choudhary in
the best interests of the Company and as may be permissible at law, viz.:

A. Period:
2 years w. e. f. 30" Beptember, 2021 with the liberty to either party to terminate the
appointment on one months’ notice in writing to the other, liable for retire by rotation.

E. Remuneration:
Basic Earnings: 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh only) per month,

4. APPROVAL FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
To pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED That pursuant to the provisions of Section 1BE of the Companies Act, 2013
{("Act”] and other applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date, Regulation 23{4) of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements] Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”] and the Company’s policy on
Related Party transaction(s), approval of Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the
Board of Directors of the Company to enter into contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/
transaction(s] with Asia Motorworks Holdings Limited and Inimitable Capital Finance
Frivate Limited (Holding Company), a related party within the meaning of Section 2{76) of
the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations, for availing and granting the
unsccured Loan facilities and Inter corporate Deposits or to borrow money, on such terms
and conditions as the Board of Directors may deem {it, up to a maximum aggregate value
of Ra. 60 Lakhs for the financial year 2021-2022, provided that the said contract(g)/
arrangement(s|/ transaction(s) so carried out shall be at arm’s length basis and in the
ordinary course of business of the Company,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT thc Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to
delegate all or any of the powers conferred on it by or under this resolution to any
Committee of Directors of the Company or to principal officer of the Company and to do all
acts and take such steps as may be considered necessary or expedient to give effect to the
aforesaid resolution.”

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hemenid mumlq

Whobks Time Dirsetar
DIMN:GAL] 774

Place: Mumhal
Date: 6" September, 2021

Hegistered Office: 1503, Lodha Supremus, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel {(west), Mumbai — 400013,
CIN: LaS9SUMHI984PLC033128 Email:- frontierleasing 1984 @gmail.com
Website: wow flindia.com Tel; +9] 8870310051
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NOTES:

The Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
annexed hereto and forma the part of this notice,

A Member entitled te attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appeint one or more
proxies to attend and vole, in case of poll only, on his/ her behalfl and a proxy need not be
a member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited with the Company at its Registered
Office not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not excesding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A Member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or Sharcholder. Proxies submitted on behalf
of limited companics, socicties, etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/
authority as applicable.

The Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents for its Share Registry Work (Physical and
Electronic) ig Link Intime India Private Limited having their Registered Office at C - 101,
247 park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400 083.

The Register of Members and the Share Transler Books of the Company shall remain
closed from 23.09.2021 to 30.09.2021 (both days inclusive] for determining the name of
members eligible for dividend on Equity and preference shares, if approved by the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

All documents referred in the accompanying notice are open for inspection at the
registered office of the Company on all working days between 11.00 a.m, to 1.00 p.m. up
to the date of the Annual General Meeting,

Diwvidends that are unclaimed/unpaid for a period of Seven Years are required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund [*IEPF") administered by the
Central Government. Due dates of transferring unclaimed and unpaid dividends declared
by the Company for the financial year 2011-12, 2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-15 & 2015-16
(final dividend) and thereafter to IEPF are as follows:

Financial Year Ended Date of Declaration of Last date for claiming
Dividend unpaid/unclaimed dividend

31st March, 2012 28t September, 2012 5t November, 2019

31= March, 2013 200k September, 2013 28% October, 2020

31st March, 2014 15" September, 2014 23rd October, 2021

31t March, 2015 25th September, 2015 3 Qetober, 2022

31 March, 2016 29% September, 2016 O7® Octobher, 2023

Members whe have not encashed the dividend warrants so far in respect of the aforesaid
periods, are requested to make their claim to Link Intime India Private Limited well in
advance of the above due dates, It may be noted that once the amounts in the unpaid
dividend accounts are transferred to TEPF, no claim shall lie against the IEPF or the
Company in respect thereof and the Members would lose their right to claim such
dividend.

Pursuant to sections 101 and 136 of the Companics Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed
thereunder, the Notice calling the Annual General Mecting along with the Annual Report
2020-21 would be sent by electranic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses pre
registered with the Depository or the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agenis.
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Members are requested to support this Green Initiative by registering/ updating their e-
mail addresses with the Depository Participant (in case of Shares held in dematerialised
form) or with Link Intime India Private Limited (in case of Shares held in physical form).

10. Corporate Members are requested to send duly certified copy of the Board resolution
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 authorizing their representative to
attend and vote at the Annunal General Meeting (including through e-voting).

11. The Securities and Exchanpe Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are therefore requested to submit their PAN details to
their respective Depository Participants with whom they have their demat accounts.
Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Registrar &
Share Transfer Agents of the Company — Link Intime India Private Limited.

12. Members are requested to:

a. intimate to the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents, Link Intime India Private
Limited, changes, if any, in their registered addresses at an early date, in case of Shares
held in physical form;

b. intimate to the respective Depository Participant, changes, if any, in their registered I

addresses at an carly date, in case of Shares held in dematerialised form:
. gquote their folio numbers/ Client 1D/ DP ID in all correspondence; and
. Consolidate their heldings into one folio in case they hold Shares under multiple folios
in the identical order of names,
e. Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report to the Annual General
Mecting,
. Members/Proxics/Representatives are re-quested to bring the Attendance Slip enclosed
in the Annual Report for attending the Meeting.

P ]

13. Voting through electronic means -
a. In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Fule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and the
Fegulabion 44 of the Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations,
2015, the Company is pleased to offer e-voling facility to its Members in respect of the
businesses to be transacted at the 37" Annual General Meeting [*AGM™). The Company
has engaged the services of Central Depository Services {India) Limited (*CDSL") as the
Authorised Agency to provide e-voting facilities, on the resolutions mentioned in the

notice of the 37" Annual General Meeting of the Company (the AGM Notice).

b. Members are requested to note that the business may be transacted through electronic
voling systemn and the Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means.

c. The facility for voting through polling papers shall be made available at the AGM and
the members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting
shall be able to vote at the Meecting through polling paper.

d. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting may alse attend the Meeting
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

e. The remote e-voling shall commence on Monday, 27® September, 2021 (10.00 a.m.)
and ends on Wednesday, 20 September, 2021 (5.00 p.m.). During this period,
shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. Thursday, 23« September, 2021, ma
cast their vote electronically, The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL fo L yating
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the sharcholder, the shgfgab
shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.
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- The voting rights of sharehelders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. 23.00.2021.

. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of
beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, 1.e. 23.09.2021
only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting and voting at Meeting
thronigh ballot papers.

- The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed CS SHASHANK CHAISAS,
Partner of M/s. AVS & Asscciates, Company Secretaries, as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the
voling through polling papers and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent
manner.

i. Any person who becomes a member of the Company after dispateh of the Notice of the
Meeting and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 23.09.2021, may obtain the User
[} and password by sending a request at helpdesk evotingficdslin. However, if the
member is already registered with CDSL for remote e-voting then he can use his exiting
user ID and password for casting the vote through e-voting. If you forgot your
password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Detsils/ Password” option
available on www.evotingindia.com or contact CDSL at the following toll free no.: 1800-
200-5533.

). The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first
count the voies cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through e-
voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company
and shall make , not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the Meeting, make a
consolidated scrutinizer's report and submit the same to the Chsairman or person
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of
the voting forthwith. The results declared along with the consoclidated scrutinizer's
report shall be placed on the website of the Company and on the website of the CDSL
https: / fwww. evotingindia.com /.

. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be
passed on the date of the Meeting i.c. Thursday, 30% September, 2021,
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The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

i,

The voting pericd beging on from Monday, 27" September, 2021 (10.00 a.m.) and ends on

Wednesday, 29t September, 2021 (5.00 p.m.). During this period shareholders’ of the

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date

(record date) ol Thursday, 23 September, 2021 may cast thelr vote electronically. The e-voting

maodule shall he disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the

meatitng venue,

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www evolingindia. com.

Click on Shareholders.

Now Enter your User ID

. For CDEL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

. For NSDL: 8 Character DP 1D followed by & Digits Client 1D,

. Members holding shares in Fhysical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login,

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on

an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used,

If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

FAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by [ncome Tax Department (Applicable for

both demat shareholders as well as physical sharcholders)

* Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company /Depository Participant
are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the
sequence number in the PAN ficld,

* In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0%
before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If
your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RAQODO0001 in the

PAN field.
Dividend Bank | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd,/ mm/yyvy format] as recorded in
Details your demat account or in the company records in order to login,
OR

Diate of Birth | » If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the
{DOEB) member id [ folioc number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in

instructicn [iv}.

H

xii.

Hiv.

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT* tab.
Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach Password Creation' menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note
that this password s to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resclutions of any other
company on which they are aligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL
platform. It is strongly recommended net to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep vour password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
reaolutiona contained in this MNotice.

Click en the 210907069, EVSN for Frontier Capital Limited an which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see *RESOLUTION DESCRIFTION” and against the same the option
TES/NO for voting, Select the option YES or NO as desired, The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that yvou dissent 1o the Resolution,
Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details

Annnal Report
2020-2021
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After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on *SUBMIT®, A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vete, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on
*CANCEL™ and accordingly modify your vote.

Unee you "CONFIEM® your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to medify your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes east by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting

fl?f demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system,

Shareholders con also east their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting avaflable for android based

mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. iPhone and Windows phone

users cun downiaad the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectingly o or dfter

Suth June 2016. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on fjour

mokile.

Note for Non = [Individual Shareholders and Custodians

*  Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc) and
Custodian are required to log on to www,evotingindia.com and register themselves as
Corporates.

. A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helpdesk evotingfedslindia.com.

*  After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the
admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the accountis)
for which they wish to vote on,

] The list of accounts linked in the Jlogin should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the aceounts they would be able
Lo cast their vote,

. A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

xxi.  In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may rcfer the Frequently

Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www_evotingindia.com, under
help section or write an email to helpdesk evating@edslindia.com.

Please follow all steps from Sl. no. [i) to sl. no. [xvii] above to cast vote
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Item No. 2: To Re-appoint Usha Iyengar, who is liable for retire by rotation

Details of the Director Seeking re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting (Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Memes of Director

UUzsha Iyengar

Date of birth

22nd August, 1963

Date of appointment as director

01% April, 2015

Remuneration last drawn

Nil

Dualification

Usha Iyengar has owver 30 wvears of post-
qualification experience with major Indian
corporate groups & MNC’s (16 years with TATA,
8 vears with TATA Motors & its subsidiaries, 7
years in Titan Co, Ltd) and currently with AMW
Motors Ltd since 2011,

She has functional domain expertise in finance
& accounting, treasury, project funding,
investment banking, mergers & acquisitions,
restructuring, Legal Secretarial & Compliance,
Investor Relations, Risk Management & Internal
Audit. Her experience varies across [ndustrial
verticals i.e Construction & Realty; IT related
services, Automotives, Financial Services,
Branded Retail, Precision Engineering, Energy,
Dil, Gas ete.

She is a well wounded and well-honed business
professional with commercial and negotiation
gkills and a sharp sense of pricing & valuation
skills which come into play in deal closures,
She is a dual qualified professional holding
post-graduation degree in commerce along with
professional degrees of CWA from ICWAI & CS
from ICS1L

Shareholding in the Company (Equity | Nil
shares of Rs. 10/- each)
List of Directorship in other listed entitics il
Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees | NA
of other listed entities
Terms and Conditions of re-appointment NA
Remuneration to be paid (if applicable) Mil
Relationship with any Director (s) of the | NA
Company

8
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Item No. 3: Re-appoint Mr. Hemendranath Choudhary

Mr. H. N. Choudhary (DIN: 06641774} was appointed as an Whole Time Director on the Board
of the Company with effect from 21st April, 2016 with the approval of the members in Annual
General Meeting.

The Board of Director of the Company reappointed Mr. Hemendranath Choudhary as a Whole-
Time Director with effect from the date 31% July, 2018 for a period of three years with the
approval of the members in Annual General Meeting,

Your Directors, therefore recommend for approval of members for re-appointment of Mr. H. N,
Choudhary, by passing the Special resolution set out at ltem No. 3 of the notice,

Except Mr. H. N. Choudhary and his relatives, none of the Directors and / or Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

Details of the Whole-Time Director Seeking re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) I. General Information
Natuare of industry The Company is engaged in the business of a
non-banking  financial  institution. The
Company is not systematically important non-

deposit talkdng NBFC,

Financial performance During the period under review, the Company
has eammed a total revenue of Rs. 27.28 Lakhs
as against Rs. 21.99 Lakhs in the previous
year, The loss after tax was Rs, 84,83 Lakhs as
against the loss of Rs. 628.04 Lakhs in
previous year,

Foreign collaboration or investments NIL

II. Information abount appointee

Name of Director Hemendranath R. Choudhary

Date of birth Ist October 1948

Date of appointment 30.09.2021

Remuneration last drawn Rs. 12,000,000/ - p. a.

Experience/ Expertize in specific functional | Mr. H N Choudhary is a Master of Engineering
aresBrief Resume in  Computer-Aided Design and Computer-

Alded Manufacturing. He has more than 2
yvears of experience in Non-Banking Financial
Company. He is also associated with famous
companies like Engo Tea Company Limited, A-
One Parts and Services Limited, AMW Finance
Limited and Asia Motorworks Limited.

Cualification ME [CAD and CAM)

Shareholding in the Company (Equity shares | NIL
of Bs. 10/- each)
List of Directorship in other listed entities NIL
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Membership /Chairmanship of Committees WIL
of other listed entities (includes only Audit
Committee and Stakeholder's Relationship

Committee)

No. of Board Meetings attended during the 4

Vear

Terms and Conditions of re-appointment Same as before
Remuneration to be paid (if applicable) Rs, 12,00,000/- p. a.

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly | Not related
with the company, or relationship with the
managerial personnel

III. Other Information

Reasons of loss Due to 100% provisions against NPAs and
Doubtful Debts, the Company has suffered loss
in previous year. Due to financial restructuring
and applicability of IND Accounting Standards
adjustments were made as required.

Steps taken for improvement Issuing legal notices for recoveries and timely
follow ups.
Expected Increase in profits As soon as the Borrowers comes out of NPAs

and reversals of provisions.

Item No. 4: Approval for Related Party Transactions to pass the following resclution as an
ordinary resolution:

To ensure stability of business and operations of the Company in terms of compliances and
other business expenditure, your Company proposes to enter into transaction(s) with Inimitable
Capital Finance private Limited and Asia Motorworks Holdings Limited, which are the related
parties of your Company.

The loan faciliies or borrowings will be based on the requirement of the Company. The total
value of the proposed transaction{s) could reach Rs, 60 Lakhs during financial year 2021-2022.
Section 188 of the Act and the applicable Rules framed thereunder provide that any Related
Party Transaction will require prior approval of shareholders through ordinary resolution, if the
aggregate value of transaction(s| amounts to 10% or more of the annual turnover of the
Company as per last audited financial statements of the Company.

Hence, approval of the shareholders is being sought for the said Related Party Transaction(s)
proposed to be entered into by your Company with Inimitable Capital Finance private Limited
and Asia Motorworks Holdings Limited in the financial yvear 2021-2022,

Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,
till date, particulars of the transaction(s) are as follows;

10
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1. | Particulars Remarks Remarks |
1 |Name of the Related | Inimitable Capital Finance | Asia Matorworks Holdings
| Party private Limited Limited
2 | Name of the Director or | NA MNA
KMP who is related o
3 | Nature of Relationship | Holding Company (69% of | Sister concern
paid-up  Equity Share
Capital)

4 | Nature, material terms, | for availing and granting | for availing and granting the
monetary value and | the unsecured Loan | unsecured Loan faciliies or
particulars of the | faciliies or Inter corporate | Inter corporate Deposits or to
contract or | Deposits or to borrow | borrow money upto Bs. 50
arrangement money upto Es. 50 Lakh | Lakh

5 |Any other information | NA NA

relevant or important
for the members to take
A decision on the
| proposed resolution

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective
relatives, other than as mentioned above is concerned or interested, financially or otherwisze, in
the resolution. The Board of Directors recornmends passing of the resolution as set out at item
no. 4 of this Notice as an Ordinary Resalution.

t,'l i "..:'p
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Registered OfMice: 1503, Lodha Supremus, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel {west), Mumbai — 400013,
CIN: LoS990MHI984PLC033 128 Email:- frontierleasing1 984@egmail .com
Website: www. fiflindia.com Tel: +21 8879310051

For and on behall of the Board of Directors

W =
Hemendranath Choudhary

Whale Time Director
DIM:6641774

Place: Mumbai
Date: 6" September, 2021
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
The Members,
Frontier Capital Limited

Your Directers have pleasure in presenting the Thirty Seventh Director's Report of the Company and the
Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year (FY) ended 31% March 2021,

1. AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY:
A, Financisl Results:

i

Income 30,86, 826

Less: Expenses 1,15,69. 500 05,30 502
Less; Exceptional Items - 6,16,03,160
Profit / [Loss) before tax -E4 82 674 -6,28.04,131

Less: Tax expenacs

iIneluding deferred tax and tax for =
carlier years)

Profit / (loss) After Taxation -84,82 674 -6,23.04,131
Leses: Proposed Dividend E =

Less: Corporate Dividend Tax - a

Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve - =

Add: Balance Brought Forward from -24 81,37,026 -18,53,32,895
Last Year

Balanee Carried Forward to Balance 25,66,19.805 =24 81,37 026
Sheet

B. Operations
During the period under review, the Company has earned a total income of Rs. 30,86,826/- as
against Rs, 83,38,630/- in the previous year, The loss hefore the tax was Es. 84 82 674 as
against the loss of Rs. 6,28,04,131in previous year. The loss after tax was Rs. 84,82 674 as
against the loss of Re. 6,28,04,131in previous year.

C. PBusincss review and outloak

The detalls of the Company’s affairs including its operations are more apecifically given in the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which is given in this Annual Report,

Outlook for the coming financial year continues (o remain uncertain, with the COVID-19
sitation evolving each day. Apart from agriculture and related activities, most other sectors of
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the economy have been adversely impacted by the pandemic and are expected to show de-
growil.

D. Dividend

The company has formulated a dividend distribution policy in compliance with regulation 434 of
SEBI [Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 [Listing Regulations|.

The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the relevant
circumstances and keeping in view the company's dividend distribution policy and loss incurred,
has decided that it would be prodent, not to recommend any Dividend for the vear under revisw,

E. Transfer to Reserves

The Company did not transfer any amount to reserves in view of the losses incurred by the
Company during the vear under reviewr,

F. Material changes and commitment if any affecting the financial position of the company
coccurred between the end of the financial year to which this finanecial statement relate
and the date of the report

Mo material changes and commitments affecting the financial pesition of the Company during
the period from the end of the financizl year on 31%= March 2021 to the date of this Report. There
has been no change in the nature of business of the Company

Share Capital

The Company bas converted Kz, 14,00,00,000 of CCP2 inte 1,40,00,000 Equity Shares of Bs. 10
ecach and issued 2500000 Equity Shares of Hs. 10 each to Inimitable Capital Finance Private
Limited issued any shares in the year 2009-20. Hence as on 31 March, 2021, the paid up share
capital of the company s Bs, 16,76,21,630 divided into 1,67.62,163 Equity shares of Es. 10/- each.
Mo shares were issued and allotted in the FY 2020-21 l

Management
A. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companics I
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mz, Usha [vengar is entithed to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting [(AGH)
and being eligible has offered himezelf for re-appointment.

Pursuant to Regulation 35[3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Eequircments)
Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as Listing Repulations’] and Secretarial Standards on
General Meeting (33-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (I

resume of the Director proposed to be re-appeinted in the ensuing Annual Gm:rﬁﬂfﬁﬁg
annexed in Notice of 37 Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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Following is the list of Directors and KMPs as on 31% March 2021, There is no change in the
same till the date of Annual Report

Nami Begin date DIN/PAN Designation

HEMENDEAMNATH 21704/2016 06641774 Whaole = Time Director

RAJENDREAMATH

CHOUDHARY

USHA SUNDAR IYENGAR 0L/ 042015 03447351 Non — Executive Woman

Director

ASHORE KATRA 15,/03/2017 OTTOG527 Independent Director

ANIKET MARESH FRABHU 3Lro8/2018 BPYPPAZIGOE Commpany Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer

B. Declaration by Independent Director:
All the Independent Directors have given declaration as required under the provisions of section
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down
under Section 140(5] of the Companiea Act, 2013 and Regulations 16 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligntions and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

C. Number of Board Meetings:

During the year under review, 4 Board Meetings were convened and held.

Name of the Director L Director Category No. of Board |[Attendanc
dentification Meetings attended| = at the
Number during the year | last AGM
Mrs. Usha Iyvengar 03447551 Mon = Execitive 4 Yea
Women Director
Mr. H. N. Choudhary De641774 Whole Time A Yeg
Director
Mr, Ashok Katra 07799527 Independent 4 V=
Director

D, Audit Committee:

i. The Audit Committee functions according fo its charter defines its composition, authority,
responsibility and reporting functions in accordance with the Act, listing requirements and the
regulations applicable to the Company and is reviewed from time to time,

Asaon 31# March, 2021, the Audit Committee comprised of three Directore viz, Mr. Ashok Katra
{chairman), Mr. H. N. Choudhary and Ms, Usha Iyenger. All of them are financially literate and
have relevant finance and/or audit exposure.

if. During the period under review, 4 Audit Committes meetings were held.,

ii, Each Beoard Meeting which considers financial results is preceded by meeting of Audit
Commities Members along with Auditors,

‘«—.f‘/ 14
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Composition of the Audit Committee and attendance at ita meetings are as follows:

'l;;nmpnaiﬂnn Meetings Attended
Mr. Ashok Katra (Chairman) 4 1
4 Mrs. Usha brenger 4 -
| Mr. HN. Choudhary 4 K

E. Company's Policy Relating to Directors Appointment And Remuneration

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board framed a Palicy
relating to the selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior
Management and their remuneration. The Policy includes eriteria for determining qualifications,
pogitive attributes and independence of a director and other matters. The same is attached
herewith and marked as Annexure 3.

F. Particulars of Employess

Disclosure with respect to the ratio of remuneration of each Directors to the median employees®
remuneration as required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of
Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 has been
appended as Annexure 4 to this Report,

During the year under review, no employee was in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits
as prescribed under provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 52}
and 5(3) of Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, I

In terms of Scction 136 of the Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the shareholders
and others entitled thereto, excluding the said information which will be made available for
mnspection by the shareholders at the Registered Office of the company du ring business hours on
any working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any
sharehelder is interested in Inspecting the same, such shareholders may write to the Company
Secretary in advance

G. Board Evaluation:

Pursuant to the provisions of Sub Section (3], Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board has earried out evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as
the worling of its Audit Committee. The Board has devised guestionnaire to cvaluate the
performance of each directors. Such questions are prepared considering the business of the
Company and the expectations that the Board has from each of the Directors. The evaluation
framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of the following key areas:

¥ Attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings; I
¥ Quality of contribution to Board deliberations:

v Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and ita performance;

¥ Providing perapectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management,

<

15
—— == r == 3

ey

.-"r.l.rc'_,..-J--qf." __.-'-C

[ 4] 1

o ey

Sl Mympe! i= ]
THEE =

g| Mg =]

=) =



i

Frontier Capital Limited

e e e ——— o — — — —

Annual Report
Z0E0-2021

H. Remuneration Structure for Board and Senior Management:

Compositicn of the Board of Directors of the Company reflects in-depth understanding of the
Company, including its strategies, operations, financial condition and compliance requirements.

The remuneration is fixed considering various parameters such as qualification, expertise,
experience, prevailing remuneration in the industry and financial position of the Company.

The Independent Directors and Woman Director do not draw any remuneration from the
Company except sitting fees of Ra. 20,000/- for each meeting attended by them, during the
financial vear 2019-20.

There is no increase in the remuneration of Whole-time Director from FY 2020-21,
Directors’ Responsibility Statcment:

The board of directors have instituted / put in place a framework of internal financial controls
and compliance systems, which is reviewed by the management and the relevant board
committees, including the audit committes and independently reviewed by the internal,
statutory and secretarial suditors,

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, confirm that:

¥ in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial vear ended 31% March, 2021, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departires;

¢ your directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March, 2021 of the Company for that period:

* your directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

¥ your directors had prepared the annual accounts on a poing concern basis;

¥ your directors, in the case of a listed company, had laid down internal financial controls to be
follewed by the company and that such internal finaneial controle are adequate and were

opening effectively; and

¥ your directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy

Pursuant to Rule (8/(3) of the Companies [Accounts] Rules, 2014 the Company has an internal
control system, commensurate with the size, secale and complexity of its operations, The
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Company monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in place,
ita compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies.

During the year under review, no reportable material weakness in the operation was ohaerved,
Regular audit and review processes ensure thal such systems are reinforced on an ongoing
basnia

Holding, Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

The Company has no subsidiaries, Joint Venture or associate company during the period under
review within the meaning of Section 2{6) of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company continues to be subsidiary of Inimitable Capital Finance Private Limited.

Deposits:

Your company has not accepled any Deposite during the financial year under review falling under
provisions of Section 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies [Acceptance of
Deposita] Rules, 2014,

Particulars of loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013

Being a Non-Banking Finance Company, the provision of Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 are
not applicable to the Company,

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related partics referred to in Section 188(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013;

All Contracts/ Arrangements/ transacHons entered by the Company during the Financial Year with
related parties were on arm's length basis, in ordinary course of business and were in the
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing Agreement.

There are no gignificant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors,
Key Managerial personnel or other designated persons as defined under Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Accordingly there are no material transactions that are required to be reported in Form ADC 2 and
as such do not form part of the report.

The Company has made adequate disclosures regarding related party transactions, contingent
liahilities, and =ignificant accounting policy in the Notes to Accounts as an integral part of the
Balance Zheet and Statement of Profit & Loas.

Corporate Social Responsibility Report (CSR):

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 and rules made thereunder are not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the Company has
not developed and implemented any policy on Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives.
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Particulars of Conservation of energy, technalogy absorption, foreign exchange esrninpgs and
outgo:

Considering the nature of business activities of the Company, your Directors have nothing to report
with respect to conservation of energy and technology absorption,

During the year under review, there were neither any foreign exchange earnings nor outgo.
Business Risk Management:

The Company has constituted a Risk Management Policy which has been entrusted with
responsibility to Board in oversecing the Company’s Risk Management process and controls, risk
tolerance and capital qguidity and funding and also aetting the strategic plans and objections for the
risk management and review of risk management of the company and also review the company's risk
appetite and strategy relating to ley risks, including credit risk, liquidity and funding risk, market
risk, product risk and reputational risk, as well as guidelines, policies and processes for monitoring
and mitigating such risks,

The Board takes responaibility for the overall process of the risk management in the organization.

The business risk is managed through cross functional involvement and communication across
businesses,

Vigll Mechanizm:

The Vigil Mechanism /[ Whistle Blower Policy has been put in place in accordance with Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013 for the Directors and Employees to report their genuine concerns about
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct. The
mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of Director(s) and Employee(s)
who avail of the mechanism. Directors and Emplovees may make protected disclosure under the
policy to the Compliance Committee constituted by the Company to admindster the internal code of
business conduct, In exceptional cases, Directors and Emplovees have direct acoeas to the Chairman
of the Audit Committes. Further no personnel have been denied access to the Compliance
Commitiee, Chalrman of the Audit Committes, as the case may be.

Ho complaints were received under whistle blower mechanism during the vear under review.

The Company has adopted & Whistle Blower Mechanism Policy establishing vigil mechanism, to
provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or viclation of the company's code of conduct or ethics policy.
The policy provides for adequate safcgoard against victimization of employees who asvail the
mechanism. No employee of directors of the Company has been denied sccess to the Audit
Comirmitteo,
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12. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future;

During the period under review, no significant or material order was passed by any regulatory
authority or court or tribunals which may have bearing on going concern status or on apergtions of
the company in future.

13. -ﬁ-"dibﬂ“—:
A. Appointment of Auditors:

Pursuant to the provision of SBection 139(2) of the Act and the Rulés framed thereunder, Mz A.C
Bhuteria, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (having FRN: 303105E) was appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years to hold office from the conclusion of
the 36% Anfiual General Meeting held till the conclusion of the 41 Annual General Meeting to be
held for the vear ending 315 March, 2026,

The Statutory Auditors have given a confirmation to the effect that they are eligible to continue
with their appointment and that they have not been disqualified in any manner from continuing
as the Statutory Auditors.

B. Remarks or qualifications by Statutory Auditors:
There are no negative remarks or qualification from Statutory Auditors.

C. BSecretarial Anditors:

Pursuant to the proviasions of Section 204 of the Act and The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed AVS &
Executives, partnership firm, Company Secretaries o underiake the Secretarial Audit of the
company, The Report of the Secretarial Audit iz annexed herewith as Annesure - 2,

D. Remarks or qualifications by Secretarial Auditors and comments from the Board:

i, Structured Digital Database as required under Regulation 3(6} of SEBI [PIT}, 2015
not mamtained by the Company as on March 31, 2021 and Intimation of Trading
Window Closure not given to Designated Persons/Connected Persons for declaration
of financial results for all the quarters during the F.Y, 2020-21 as well as Trading
Window Closure intimation to BSE Limited for the financial results for the quarter
ended September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020 were not furnished — Company is
working or in talks with the RTA and other IT platforms to install Structured Digital

Database for giving all the intimations required and for complying under SEBI (PIT),
2015 shall be made,

ii. Internal Auditor has not been appointed by the Company under section 138 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the F.Y. 2020-21 - Company is looking for g suitable

candidaturea,

(A
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Forms for some Board Resolutions passed during the F.Y, 2020-21 have not been
filed with the ROC - Some of the RoC forms was not filed inadvertently

Website of the Company iz not functional and requisites policies as per applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI
(FIT) Regulations, 2015 not available in the records of the Company - Company is

working or in talks with IT professional / platfirms ta resume the wehgite of the
Company, Onoe wehbsite is working all the policies shall be uploaded in the die oourse.

The Company has made delay in submission of its disclosure of related party
transactions on consolidated basis for the half year ended March 31, 2020 and
September 30, 2020 to BSE Limited - Company inadvertently fajled to disclose the

same with the stock exchange withing required time frame, Clarification on the same
were duly submitted to the exrchangs,

The Company has entered in to related party transactions with its Related Party
which was Material in nature without approval of shareholders as required under
Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 - Company had obtained the
Shareholder approval for increasing borrowsing limits upto Rs. 500 crores in the Gen
Meeting held on FY 2019-20_After making allotment of 1,65,00 000 equity shares in
August, 2010 Corpore DAETTLCT lation. _under SE ODR) 2018 wer
cable to any _and he shareholder roval from borrpwing from
related parties were required in FY 2020-21, Same is prooosed in the Not the 37

Annyal General Meeting.

Composition of Board, Audit Committee, Nomination & Remunecration Commitise
and Stakeholder Relationship Committee is not in accordance with Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 - o OOVID 19 po S dnd

Inckdouns, Company is not able to find right candidature to appoint as an I

Independent Director hence Composition in net in accordance with the requlations.

Newspaper Publication with respect to intimation of Board Meeting to be held for
financial results for quarter cnded September 30, 2020 has been made with delay.
Further, Newspaper Publication for Intimation of Beard Mee ing as well as Financial
results for all the quarters of F.Y, 2020-21 made not as per Regulation 47 of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 = [ue to Iockdorins proforals from gevernments, Ifimaiions
1egre delayed.

Submission of Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report for quarter ended March
31, 2020 and December 31, 2020 to BSE Limited made in delay — Beport submitted

with delay of 1 day due fo non-aroidable circumstances,

Disclosure under Regulation 74(5) of SEBI (Depositories  Participant) Regulation,
2018 fer the guarter ended June 30, 2020 has not been submitted - Company
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Missed the same inadvertently

xi. Annual Listing Fees for F.Y. 2020-21 has not been paid by the Company to BSE

Lirnited - Due fo non-grailability of the funds, Company failed to pay lsting fees,

xii, Due to non-availability of documents/details related to transfer of unclaimed final

dividend declared in AGM held on 20% September, 2013 along with its shares to IEPF
Authority, we are not able to comment on status relevant compliances of the same -

comply with the gpplicable requiations.

E. Internal Audit:

mternal auditor for Financial Year 2020-21.

14, Secretarial Standards:

Company Secretaries of India.

15. Extract of the Annual Returmn:

is attached to this Beport.
16, Dther Compliance:

A. Reserve Bank of India:

Duie to COVID 19 pandemics, lnckdowns and non-availakility of signatories, Company
was not able to gather required information in this matter and working on the same to

Purauant to provision of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rule 13 of Companies
(Accounts] Rules, 2014, management is in search for the right candidature to Appoint as an

Company complies with all applicable mandatory secretarial standards isaued by Institute of

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the
Companies (Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in (Annexure 1 MGT-9) and

The Company is registered with RBIl as an Assct Financing Non-Deposit Accepting NBFC. The
Company has complied with and continues to comply with the applicable Regulations and
Directions of the RBI and it does not carry on any activities ather than those specifically
permitted by the RBI.

Accounts and Accounting Standards;
The Company adheres to the Accounting Standards as prescribed under section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 7 of the Companics {Accounts) Rules, 2014 in the preparation of
its financial statements and alao to the guidelines prescribed by the RBI,
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Stock Exchanges - Compliance of Listing Agreements/ SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

The Company's shares are listed on the BSE Ltd. The Company has paid the requisite listing
fees to the Stock Exchange. Further, the Company has demat connectivity with both the
Depositories, NSDL and CDEL and paid Annual Fess to both the Depositaries.

Green Imitintive:

Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under allow the Company to
scnd its financial statements by electronic mode to such members whose shareholding is in
dematerialized f[ormat and whose email addresses are registered with Depository for
communication purpeses. As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company proposes to effect
electronic delivery of the Annual Report of the Company in lieu of the paper form to the Members
who have registered their email [Ds with the Depositories. However, as a matter of practice, a
physical copy of the Annual Heport has also been sent 1o the members at their address
regiatered with the Company and the Depository Participants.

A copy of this Annual Report along with the Annual Report of each of the Company for FY 2020-
21 will b= placed on the website of the Company.

Prevention of Sexual harassment:

The company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at work place and has adopted a policy
on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the
provisions of the Sexual harassment of women at workplace [prevention, prohibition ad
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of
sexual harassment at workplace. The Company is committed to provide equal opportunities to
their race, caste, sex, religion, color, nationality, disability, ctc. All women associates
(permanent, tempotary, contractual and trainses) as well as women visiting the company’s office
premises or women service providers are coversd under this policy. All are treated with dignity
with a view to maintain a work environment free of aexual harasement whether physical, verbal

or peychological.

During Fiscal Year 2021, the Company has not teceived any complaint on sexual harassment.

17. Management Discussion and Analysls Report (MDAR):

Pursuant to regulation 342) of the Listing Regulations, Management Discussion and Analysis Repaort
is attached in the Annexure 5

18, Corporate Governance Report:

A report on corporate governance as per the Listing Repgulations iz attached and forms part of this
/report Annexure 6. The report also contains the details as required to be provided on the composition

Ky

and category of directors, number of meetings of the board, composition of the various commitiess,

annual board evaluation, remuneration policy, criteria for board nomination and senior management
appointment, whistle blower policy/vigil mechanism, discloaure of relationships between directors
inter-se, state of company’s affairs, etc.
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The Directors would like to place on record their gratitude for the valuable guidance and support
received from the Reserve Bank of India, Securities and Exchange Board of India, Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited and other Government and Regulatory Autherities and convey their appreciation
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of the company.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Hemendranath Choudhary Usha Iyengar
PFlace: Mumhal Whale - Time Director Director
Date: 06092021 DIM:6641774 DIN: 03447551
23




Frontier Capital Limited

e e — L e

Anmuaal Report
Z0Z0-2021

I. Registration and Other Detalls:

CIN

FORM NO. MGT-9

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on 31 March, 2021
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014|

: LAS990MH 1984PLC0O33 128

Registration Date

P 13-06-1984

Name of the Company

: Frantier Capital Limited

_l:'nt:g- ory |/ E“uh-l:abo::gnrjr- rvy of
the

Company

: Public ﬂ:u-m[:la.n}f,l’ Company Limited by Shares/ Indian
Non - Government Company

Address of the Registered
offize and contact details

: 1503, Lodha Supremus, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel [west),
Mumbai — 400013, Maharashtra, India

Fhone No.: 022-3382-6000; Fax Number : 022-3382-6123
Email : fronticrleasing 1 984@gmail com

Whether listed company

i Yes

Hame, Address and Contact
details of Registrar and Transfer

_Agent, ifany

2 Link Intime India Private Limited
1= Floar, 44-E, M Vasanti Marg Safed Pool, Andheri Kurla
Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400072

IL Principal Business Activities of the Company:
Br, Mame snd Description of main products ) scrvices NIC Cods af the Y o total turnaver of
Mo, Product/ service the caompany
T 01 | Hire Purchase, Comumescial Vehick Finance, Constroston BATA0 100
Equipment  Finenee, Hill Diseounting, Channel Finanee,
Corporaie Funding (1CD)]
111, Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies:
[Br. Mo, | Mame and Addreas of The Company CIN/ GLN Halding/  [Fercentage of | Applicabie
Subsidinry/ | Shares Held | Section
Ansoriare
o1 Inimitable  Capital | Finsnce U790 THAO0BPTCOBT T35 Holding 59 Section 246
Pravabe Limnited
1503, Lodhe Supremus, Senspats
Bapar Marg, Lower Pare] fwest],
Eumibad - 40003, Maharashira,
[nekia
] 24




Frontier Capital Limited

v,

= o i

Annual Report
2020-2021

e — =y N
s =

Share Helding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):
{a) Category-wise Share Holding -

Category of Bhare Holders

Mo, of Bhares held at the beginning

Ho. of Shares held ot the end of the year

of the year

Change

the year

Demar Phyeical

Total

% af
Total

Ehares

El}-u mat

Phyaical

Tatal

1j Indinn

Al Promoters

Individual f HUF

L6, 000

1,900

_Central Govt,

0, 10,000

Btate Chowg .|ﬂ

0,236,000 | 5.53

9,10,000 |

S, 20, T

176,610

[ Hadies Corp.
Banlks f F

176,610 L LIHAH

11566610

Any Other

1 1 S50

11,566,610

Suib-total (4] (1]

193510 [13J00000

12403580

193 510

1.23,00.000

1,24,53 510

1T} Foreign

&) MRl - ]ndn‘i____rhd_:lgls

b Cther Individaals
i} Hislies Coap.

| d) Banks | FI

| ¢} Any Gther

| Sub-toial (A} (1)

Tatal sharcholding
af Promoier

193,510 |l 2300000

13993510

T4.53

193,510 |1,23.00,000

13983510

TR

B} Public Bharebolding

I} Institutions

Al Mutusl Funds

bl Banks § FI

o) Central Gt

d State Govils)

ey Venmage Capital Funds

qgnmtmnfe ot ranies

gl Flls

hi} Foresgn Wenture Cagpital
LE s

i) Crthers [specify)

_Sub-total [B}1)

ITj Ron - Institutions
al it Boddies Corp. (Indian)

S52ILE |

S2,318

5331

()

a| ii] Bodies Cerp. (Overasas)

B 1) Individoals {(Individual
shargholders holding mominal
share capital upto Bs. 1 lakh)

e

16335 -

16,335

16335

0.1

L H] Iabividdals | Individual
sharehcliders halding nominal
share capital i excess al Bs

1 lakh

AMHI00 | 4200000

4200000

4 200000

E5.06

£} Ciliters (speciy)

Buab-tetal @2}

68,653 | 4200000

4268653

. Tatal Public Sharcholding

68,653 | 4200000

268553

2847

58,653

23,00,000

4268683

28947

68,653

Z, 00, 00D

4268653

G, Ghares held by Custodizn
Tor GDEs & ADREs

“Grand Total [A+B+C]

2,62,163 16500000

16762163 100

2,62,1631,68,00,000

1,67,62, 163
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(b} Sharcholding of Promoters:
Sharcholders Ho, of Bhares held &t the beginning Ho. of Shares held at Ih:.u-a-nd of the i Change
Hamug of the year yonr during the
yiar
Ho. of % of % of Shares No. of = of e of Bhares
Shares total Pledped | Shares Lkl Pladged §
Shares Gsncumbored to Shares encombersd to
- = total shares tatal alares
Inimitable Capital 11566610 a49.00 11,566,610 11,566,610 L0 & ]
Finance Private
Limtied _ i
Anirdh Bhuwslka S Sk o353 S, 2, S o.36,900 5.53 - [i]H]
Tatal 1,24,93 510 74.53 1,24,93,510 1,24.03 510 '.!'4_:_5;3 - [aln]
le}] Change in Promoters' Shareholding:

Particulars Shareholdimg at the begimning of Curmutative Sharelakling during
e year ___the year
M. af shares o of Tatal Mo, of shares %% of Tatal
Shares of the Shares ol the

Company Campaiy

Al the Deginning of the year 1,24,93,510 T4 1,24,93,510 74,53
Pursuant to Preferentinl issie [ O

Al the End of e vear 1.24,%23.510 T4.53 1,24,03 810 T4.53

(d} Sharcholding Pattern of top ten Sharcholders [other than Directors, Promoters and
GDR & ADR Halders):

&r, | Partloulars Ehareholding at the Bhareholding at the end of | Cumulative Shareholding
e beginning of the vear the year during the year
Wo. of % of total Bo, af % af total Ha, af % of Total
R SBharés of the | shares Shares of shares Shares of the
5 company the company company
(.| Mr. Atul Bhagwat_ 0000|136 2240000 13,36 20 13.36
. Mr. Vinay Kalaniri 1 11,69 1960000 10,0645 LR 11450
3, | Adel Shipping 15,120 5.76 15,120 .09 15,120 0.09
Holdings Lirmited s
i, Jubilee Blipping & 15,026 5.732 15,06 .09 15,026 .09
lﬂaj:-ﬁl:l. HD\]-I‘.Ii.I.‘IE_! Lipnited
o, Sivanarayanan Financial 14,805 5,085 14 S 0a 1<, 500 0,05
Servises Private Linyited
i, Santazh Marpven Rathi & A655 2238 S.E66 03 5,008 0,03
T, Neha Fajat Lahoty S200 | 123 2,200 [ 3,300 12,612
[ B. | Richn Rathi _ 3,200 123 3,200 .02 3,200 0.02
o, Ezsen Comsultints 2,300 04915 2400 .01 200 0.01
Private Limi=d ESE
1t | Mrdhumilen Credit Capital 2400 0915 2400 .01 2 A0 0.01
FPrivate Limited
ie] Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:=
Zr. No. For sach of the Directors and Mhﬂdiﬂ[ at the btg{ﬂ.lrg Cumulative Shareholding
HMP L. . ofthe year s F during the year
Fo, of shares %% of total Ho. of shares % of total
Shares of the Shares of the
Company Company
1. M Isha TrenEar H [0, 8y =3 0,00
End of the sear 1 4 00,y fa (.00
“ nirs. Usha vengar as been appoinged as a Trustes of 08 (Eight) new equity shares representing fraction  shares resulied oman
af the allotmest of 17,163 number of beals equity shares issued against existing 51490 Nilly paid equity shares to the
sharchalders st Bomrd of Director's meeting held on Tuesday, O2md August, 2006, —
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V. Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for I
payment:
Particulars Becured Loans Unseoured Loons Dueposits Tatal
excluding deposits | Indebtedness
Indebtedness al the beginning of the fnancial vear
_i] Principal Amaunt - 400,000 58,204,860 |
|_H) Intesest due but not paid - 3 =
mir) ]nte-rl:st u.muad. bt no gy | g » = .
Toatal ﬂ*l‘EiI.lil ) | - 4 030,000 - 58,24 B63 :
Chlngg_g,hdebte-dnm during the financlal year = * |
Addition . 13,85 000 r 1,75 OXM)
Reduction = 200000 - 56,22 BGE
Met Chenpe 3 1185 000 ' [54.97,B6B] |
Indebtedness at the end of the financial FEAT
:i Principal Amount " 15,85 000 = 4,100,000
in] Imterest due bt not padid - . - -
_iki] [mtersst pocnsed bt not due = e i .
Tatal [i+ii+ii) . 2,00,000 4,000,000
VI. A] Remuneration of Directors and Hey Managerial Personnel:
Particulars of Remuneration Eame of MD/WID/ Manager Tatal Amount |
HEMENDRANATH CHOUDHARY
Girass salary 12,0:0,000 12,00,000
(4] Salary as per provisions contained in section LT(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 |
] Value of perquisites w/s 172} Income-tax Act, 1961
(g} Profits in Uen of =salary uwnder section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Optlon - -
Sweat Equity 2 5
Commissbon A
- a8 % of profit
- athers, specify. - B
ﬂthum,jhnn specliy ____Rs, 20, 000 per Mesting =
Cuiling ae por the Act 61,000,000 60,000,000
E| Remuneration to other Directors: Non - Exccutive directors are not paid any salaries other than
sitting fees of Rs, 20,000 per Meeting held for Board as well as Audit committes.
C] Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerinl Personnel:
Partlenlars of Remuneration Euy Managerial Personnel
| CEO Company Socretary & CFO Total
| _Home of the HMP - Aniket Karesh Prabhu -
Gross salary T2 000 T.20,000
{z) Salary am por provizions contained in
section 1T} of the Income-tax Act, 1951
(b WValue of perguisites ofa 1702
Income-tax Agt, IT6E1
(e} Prafits in litw of salary under sectlon 173}
Income-tax Aot; 1561
Stock Option - -
[ Sweat Equity -
| Commission . I
Total 720,000 ‘.nm 000
Cweiling as per tha Aot Aw per Sar:‘l::lnn 197 read with Schedule ¥ of the Companies Act, |
2013

i

v e
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Penalties / Punichment/ Compounding of Offences;
Type Section OF | Brief Details of Penalty | Antharit A
I
the | Description ‘ I Punisbhment [RI ¢ ¥ IIT;: If Any
i:tmpinin Compounding Fees | NOLT [Bdwe

T Imposed § Court] | Details)
| Proalty
| Pumishmerit
{ Compounding e

B. Directars

Penglty

Punishment Nafna
| Compranding

C. Other Officsre In Default

Penalty -

Funishipent
| Commponiniling -

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors '
B N
Hemendranath Choudhary Usha Iyengar
Place: Mumbai Whole - Time Director Director

Date: 06,09, 2021

DIN:EG4 1774
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Annexure 2

AVS & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

Regd. Office:S-27, Haware Fantasia Business Park, Next to Inorbit Mall, Sector 30A,
Vashi, Navi Mumbai -400703, Maharashtra, India
Email:avsassociates16@gmail.com Tel: 022-49785430 / 49785431 / 27810071

FORM NO. MR.3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

FRONTIER CAPITAL LIMITED

Add: 1503, Lodha Supremus, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel (West), Lower Parel,

Mumbai-400013, Maharashtra, India

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by FRONTIER CAPITAL LIMITED (hereinafter
called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the

provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
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(i)
(iii)
(iv)

(v)

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(i) We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the following law
applicable specifically to the Company;
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e Rules, regulations and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India for Non-
Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Companies

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except the followings:

1. Structured Digital Database as required under Regulation 3(6) of SEBI (PIT), 2015 not
maintained by the Company as on March 31, 2021;

2. Internal Auditor has not been appointed by the Company under section 138 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the F.Y. 2020-21;

3. Intimation of Trading Window Closure not given to Designated Persons/Connected
Persons for declaration of financial results for all the quarters during the F.Y. 2020-21 as
well as Trading Window Closure intimation to BSE Limited for the financial results for
the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020 were not furnished;

4. Forms for some Board Resolutions passed during the F.Y. 2020-21 have not been filed
with the ROC;

5. Website of the Company is not functional and requisites policies as per applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI (PIT)
Regulations, 2015 not available in the records of the Company;

6. The Company has made delay in submission of its disclosure of related party
transactions on consolidated basis for the half year ended March 31, 2020 and
September 30, 2020 to BSE Limited,;

7. The Company has entered in to related party transactions with its Related Party which
was Material in nature without approval of shareholders as required under Regulation
23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015;

8. Composition of Board, Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholder Relationship Committee is not in accordance with Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015;

9. Newspaper Publication with respect to intimation of Board Meeting to be held for
financial results for quarter ended September 30, 2020 has been made with delay.
Further, Newspaper Publication for Intimation of Board Meeting as well as Financial
results for all the quarters of F.Y. 2020-21 made not as per Regulation 47 of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015;

10.Submission of Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report for quarter ended March 31,
2020 and December 31, 2020 to BSE Limited made in delay;

11.Disclosure under Regulation 74(5) of SEBI (Depositories Participant) Regulation, 2018 for
the quarter ended June 30, 2020 has not been submitted;

12.Annual Listing Fees for F.Y. 2020-21 has not been paid by the Company to BSE Limited,;
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13.Due to non-availability of documents/details related to transfer of unclaimed final
dividend declared in AGM held on 20th September, 2013 along with its shares to IEPF
Authority, we are not able to comment on status relevant compliances of the same.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors except mentioned above. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and agenda items were
sent at least seven days in advance except mentioned above and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out either unanimously or
majority as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of
the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that the Company has taken the approval of shareholders by way of Special
Resolution for allotment of 1,65,00,000 (One Crore Sixty Five Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs.
10 each under Regulation 170(2) of Chapter V of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018.

For AVS & Associates
Company Secretaries

SD/-

Vijay Yadav

Partner

Membership No. A39251
C.P. No: 16806

UDIN: A039251C000910319

Place: Kalyan, Thane
Date: 06/09/2021

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ and
forms an integral part of this report.
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To,

‘Annexure - A’

The Members

FRONTIER CAPITAL LIMITED

Add: 1503, Lodha Supremus, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel (West), Lower Parel,

Mumbai-400013, Maharashtra, India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial and other records under applicable laws is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to issue Secretarial Audit Report, based on the
audit of the relevant records maintained and furnished to us by the Company, along with
explanations where so required.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test check basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and major events during the audit period.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test check basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Due to lockdown in the state because of COVID-19, we were not able to personally visit at the
office of the company for verification of documents physically and hence obtained all the
documents, details, information in electronic mode and taken necessary explanations,
clarifications and representations either telephonically or electronically whenever required.

For AVS & Associates
Company Secretaries

SD/-

Vijay Yadav

Partner

Membership No. A39251
C.P. No: 16806

UDIN: A039251C000910319

Place: Kalyan, Thane
Date: 06/09/2021
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HOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

This Momination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time. This policy on nomination and remunsration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee [NRC or the Committee} and has been approved by the Board of Directors,

Definitions:

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered
by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961

“Key Managerial Persennel” means:
i. Managing Director, or Chiel Executive Officer o Manager and in their absence, 8 Whale-time
Mhrector;
i, Chiefl Financial Officer:
i, Company Secretary; and
. such other officer as may he prescribed.

“Benior Managerial Personnel” mean the personnel of the company who are members of its cone
management team excluding Board of Directors, Normally, this would comprize all members of
management, of rank equivalent to General Manager and above, including all functional heads,

hiective:

The objective of the policy is to engure that

¥ the level and composition of remuncration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfially;

¥ relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

¥ remuncration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the company and its goals.

Role of the Committee:

The role of the NRC will be the following:

*  To formulate criteria for determining gualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director.

¥ Toformulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

* Toidentify persons who are qualificd to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria ladd down in this pelicy.

*  To camy out evaluation of Director's performance,

¥ Torecommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management.
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w

AFPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY I
MANAGEMENT

To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managenal
Personnel and Senor Management,

To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition, size.

Successlon planning for replacing Key Executives and oversesing,

To carry out any other function as is mendeted by the Board from tme bo time and [ or enforced
by any statutory notificetion, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

To perform such other lunctions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its
duties.

The Committes shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experionce of
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Sendor Management level and recommend his f
her appointment, az per Company’s Policy.

A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and expecence lor the position he [ she
is considered for appointment. The Committee has authority to decide whether qualification,
expertise and experience possessed by a person is suflicient [ satisfactory for the position.

The Company shall not appeint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director
who bas attained the age of seventy vears. Provided that the term of the person holding this
position may be extended bevond the age of seventy years with the approval of sharholders by
passing a special resaluleon,

TERM | TENURE:

A. MANAGING DIRECTOR/ WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR.:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing
Director orf Executive Director for a term not exceeding five vears at a time. No re-appoiniment
shall be made earler than one year before the expiry of term.,

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive vears on the Board of
the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the
Company and disclosure of such appoiniment it the Board's report.

Mo Independent Director shall hold office for more than two comsecutive terms of upte maximum
of 5 years each, but such Independent Director shall be cligible for appointment after expiry of
three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director.

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the eaid period of three years, be
appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or
indirectly,

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards
on which such Independent Director serves is restrncted to seven listed companies as &an
Independent Director and three Heted companiesa as an Independent Director in ¢ase such person
ia serving as a Whole-time Director of a Hsted company or such other number as may be
prescribed under the Act.
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EVALUATION:

The Committes shall carry out evaluaten of performance of Ddirector, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel vearly or at such intervals as may be considered necessary,

REMOWVAL:

The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of & Director, KMP or
Senior Management Personnel subject to the previstons and complionce of the Companies Act,
2013, rules and regulations and the policy of the Company,

RETIREMENT;

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions
of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain
the Director, KMP, Senior Manegement Personnel in the same position; remuneration or
otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

FOLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/KMP/SENTIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

A,

Remuneration to Managing Director /| Whole-time Directors:

a) The Remuneration/ Commission eto. to be paid to Managing Director /| Whole-time Directors,
€lc. shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under
or any other enactment for the time being in force and the approvals obtained from the Members
of the Company,

b} The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board
of Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director /
Whole-time Directors.

Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Directors:

al The Non-Executive | Independent Directors may receive sitting fees amd such other
remuneration as permissible under the provisions of Companies Act. 2013, The amount of sitting
fees shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Commities ared
approved by the Board of Directors.

bl All the remuneration of the Non- Executive | Independent Directors [excluding remuneration
tor attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be
subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or
any other enactment for the time being in foree. The amount of suck remuneration shall be such
as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committes and approved by the
Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be.

c} An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible
to participate in eny share based payment schemes of the Company,
d] Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive / Independent Directors for services rendered which

are of professional in nature shall not be considered a5 part of the remuneration for the purposcs
af clause (b} above if the following conditions are satisfied:
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* The Services are rendered by such Director i his capacity as the professional: and
* In the cpinion of the Committee, the director poeaeases the requisite gqualification for the
practice of that profession.

€) The Compensation Committee of the Company, constituted for the purpose of administering the
Emplovee Stock Option/ Purchase Schemes, shall determine the stock options and other share
bazed payments to be made to Directors (other than Independent Directors),

C. Remuncration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senjor Management:
a) The remuneration to Key Manngerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed

pay and meentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 20132 and in
accardance with the Company's Policy.

b) The Compensation Committee of the Company, constituted for the purpose of administering
the Employee Stock Option! Purchase Schemes, shall determine the stock options and other
share-based payments Lo be made to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management,

c] The Fixed pay shall include monthly remunetation, employver's contribution to Provident Fund,
contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, ete, as decided from to time.

d] The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company
and performance of the Key Managerlal Personnsl and Senior Management, to be decided
annually or at such inlervals as may be considered Appropriate,

IMPLEMENTATION

* The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, lormats, reporting tmechanism and manuals in
supplement and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate.

* The Committes may Delegate any of its powers {0 one ar more of its members.

For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors

YWt [

—

Hemendranath Choudhary Usha Ivengar
Flace: Mumbhbai Whoie - Time Director Director
Date: 06.09.2021 DIN:&641774 DIN: 03447551
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Annexure &

* Disclosure as per Section 197 [12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule B(1) of the
Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personncl) Rules, 2014;

[} “The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the
emplovees of the company for the financial year 2020-2021 :-
Name of the Director |Ratio of remuneration to the
median remuneration of the
|employees 1
Mr. Hemendranath Choudhary N HA
(i) | The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, | There is no increase in the

CFO, CED, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the | remuneration of the Whale-
financial year 2020-21. Time Director and Company
Secretary during the FY 2020-

21

[iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of | NA
. employees in the linancial year 2020-21, -

(iv] The number of per manent emplovees on the rolle of the | Nil

company as on March 21st, 2021,
iv] _P;t:ét:m;ﬁ_péantﬂ&-iﬁcrcaa: already made in the salaries of | NA
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
clrcumstances for increase in the managerial remunemt:-:m |
We hereby confirm that the remuneration pzud during the year is a5 per the remuneration policy of the
| Company and as adopted by the company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors . I
N

Hemendranath Choudhary  Usha Iyengar
Place: Mumlai Whale - Time Director Director
Date: 06.09.2021 DIN:6641774 DIN: 03447551 I
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Annexure 5
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

A. INDUSTRY AND ECONOMIC SCENARIO:
The Indian economy has gone through a rough phase in recent periods. Notably, domestic economy
which was already grappling with a structural slowdown led by absence of revival in capex cyele and
consumption slowdoewn making economy to record continuous decline from FY18 and led to six-vear
low GDP growth of 4.2% in FY20. Then havoc caused by COVID-19 through nationwide lockdown
from March 25, 2020 severely impacted economic activities in Natien in 1QFY21, which led to a I
contraction of 23.9% in GDP during 1QFY21.

However, stimulus measures announced by the government and the RBI aided economy to witness
V-shaped recovery especially In 2HFY21. As per Economic Survey FY21, real GDP is likely to
contraot by 7.7% in FY1l. The Government of India (Gol] has provided huge economic stimulus to
revive and support the economy during the peak of COVID-19 pandemic. The Gol and the RBI
announced a series of fiscal and liquidity suppert to the tune of whopping ~ 20.9 trillion during
Mar'20-Oct20, which is 14.6% of GDP, Even if we exclude the RBI's liquidity J monetary support of
12.7 trillion, the povernment’s portion of fiscal stimulus translates to ~B.4% of GDP, which is
substantially higher than the fiscal stimulus of -1.8% of GDP announced during GFC (Global
Financial Crisis).

B. COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND LOCKDOWN
The Government of India provided COVID-19 Stimulus Package of © 20 lakh crores amounting to
10% of the GDP. India's economic recovery has been V shaped with GDP growth of 0.5% in Q3 FY 21
and 1.6% in Q4 FY 21 after contracting 24.4% and 7.4% in 21 FY 21 and Q2 FY 21, respectively,
India’s GDF for FY 21 is to contract by 7.3% as compared to 4.0% growth in FY 20. This is the first
full year contraction in the Indian econemy in the last four decades since 1979-50, when GDP had
shrunk by 5.2%. GDF at Constant Prices {2011-12) in the year 2020-21 is likely to attain a level of
133.13 trillion, as against the First Revised Estimate of GDP for the Vear 2019-20 of * 145.69 tnllion.
Agriculture set to cushion the shock of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Indian economy in FY 21
with a growth of 3.6%. Manufacturing sector is expected to contract 7.2% during FY 21. Mining and
quartying output expected to contract by 8.5%. Among services sectars, trace, hotel, transport is
expected to contract 18.2%. Despite rising erude oil and auto fuel prices in India Consumer Price
Inflation [CPI) for 2021 is expected to be at 4.9% and to 5.1% for 2022, World Bank has pegeed GDP
growth of India at 8.3% given the COVID-induced uncertainty from second wave which started in
mid-Febroaary 2021, I

Source: REI, NSO (MOSFI)

C. FINANCIAL SERVICES SECTOR
India’s financial services sector comprises of commercial banks/co-operative banks, non-banking
financial companies, insurance companies, pension / mutual funds and other various entities. India
is expected to be fourth largeat private wealth market globally by 2028.

The country's financial services sector consists of the capital markets, insurance sector and non- I
banking financial companies ([NBFCs).
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D. FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE (AS PER [ND AS)
There are no significant changes in key financial ratios of the Company for F.Y. 2020-21 &8 cottipared

to F.Y. 2019-20. The Company has an internal control sYSlem, commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. The Company monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of
internal control syatem in place, its compliance with operating systema, accounting procedures and
policiea.

E. ANALYSIS
Strengths
* Unique relationship-based business model with extensive experience and expertise in credit
appraigal and collection process
* Strong brand name
s A well-defined and scalable organizational structure based on product, territory and process
knowledge
* Experienced senior manggement feam
* Strong relationships with public, private as well as foreign banks, institutions and investors,
Weakness
* Business and growth directly linked with the GDP growth of the country
* Company's Customers-SRTOs and FIUs are more vulnerable to negative effects of economic
downturn
Opportunities
¢ CGrowth in the commercial vehicles, passenger vehicles and tractors market
* Meeting working capital nesds of persons in commercial vehicles ECO-BVEIEMm
* Higher budgetary allocation by the Covernment to give boost to infrastructure sector involving
construction of roads, new airports, parts etc. creating huge demand for Commercial Vehicle
* Cross selling of insurance products, invoice discounting ete,
Threats
* Competition from captive finance companies and small banle
*  Ad-hoc policies on phasing out of older vehicles
Inadequate availability of bank finance and upsurge in borrowing coat
»  External risks associated with liguidity stress, palitical uncertainties, fiscal slippage CONCErTE, &be.

F. FUTURE STRATEGY

The Board has determined the following medium-term and longterm strategies to achicve its Corporate
goals over a period of next 3-5 veurs:
* Further strengthening the leadership pesition in financing vehicles
* Further enhancing quality of loan portiolio Maintaining custemer loyalty through winning
relationship and customer satisfaction
The Board is also looking for potential investors and {5 open for takeover/ Acquisition strategies.

For and on behalf of the Board u{mrcctw

%

Hemendranath Choudhary Usha Iyengar
Plage: Mumbai Whole - Time Director Director
Date: 06.09.2021 DIN:6541774 DHN: 0344755
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Annexure &
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance is about commitment to values aned ethical business conduct, It is also about how
an organisation is managed viz, its corporate and business siructure, its culture, policies and the
manner in which it deals with various stakeholders, Timely and accurate disclosure of information
régarding the financial position of the company, its performance and ownership forms part of the
COTPOrats govermance,

The company believes that sound corporate governance practices are crucial to the smooth and efficient
operation of a company and its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of its stakeholders and
provide shareholder value. Evervthing the com pany does iz defined and conditioned by the high
standards of governance, which serve its values. I

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The corporate governance practices of the company ensure that the board of directors (the board)
remaing informed, independent and involved in the company and that there are ongoing efforts towards
better governance to mitigate "non-business” risks.

The board is fully aware of its fiduciary responsibilities and recognizes its responsibilities to
shareholders and other stakeholders to uphold the highest standards in all matters concerning the
eompany and has empowered responsible persons to implement its broad policies and guidelines
and has set up adeguate review processes.

The board is committed to representing the long-term interests of the stakeholders and in providing
effective governance over the company’s affairs and exercise reasonable business judgment on the
affairs of the company.,

COMPOSITION I

The board has been constituted in a manner as per reg, 17 of the SEBI [Listing Obligntions and
Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015 [Listing Regulations) and the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act],
The board has a mix of executive [ non-executive and independent directors, including 8 woman
independent director to ensure proper governance and management, The board members have collective
expericnce in diverse fields like banking and financial services, audit, fnance, compliance and
technelogy, The directors are elected based on their qualification and experience in varied fields, None of
the directors are inter-serelated. Compoesition of the Board is as follows:
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Hame DIN/PAN Designation
HEMENDRANATH RAJENDREANATH | 05641774 Whole — Time Director
CHOUDHARY
USHA SUNDAR IYENGAR 03447551 Non — Executive Woman Director
ASHOK KATRA 07799537 Independent Direcior
ANIKET NARESH PRABHU BFYPF13198 Company Secretary and Chiefl
Fmanaoial Officer

All the Directors are in compliance with the regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations and the Act.

In the opinion of the board, the independent directors of the company fulfill the conditions specified
in Listing Regulations and are independent of the management of the company.

BOARD MEETINGS

The board meets at regular intervals with an annual calendar and a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved for its attention to ensure that it exercises full control over significant strategic,
financial, operational and compliance matters. The board is regularly bricfed and updated on the key
activities of the business and is provided with briefings and presentations on operations, quarterly
financial statements and other matters concerning the company, Besides, information about
statutory compliance, minutes of all the subsidiary companies and committess of the board and
information as required under the Listing Regulations are also provided to the directors on a
guarterly basis. The board at every meeting alao reviews the important regulatory changes and
carrespondence between two meetings.

During the year, the Board met 4 times. The company also provides the option to participate
through video conferencing to enable the directors’ participation at the meetings. All the members have
attended all the Board meetings and other committess meetings during the vear,

CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SEECRETARY IN PRACTICE

M/s. AVS & Associates hes issued a certificate as required under the Listing Regulations, confirming
that none of the directors on the board of the company has been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as director of companies by SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or  any such
slatutory authority, A certificate to this effect has been enclosed with this report

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Terms of Reforence

The committes acts as & link betwesn the board, the statutory auditors and the internal auditors. The
role of the audit committes includes overseeing the financial reporting process and disclosure of Anancial
information, review of financial statements, adequacy of internal financial controls and risk management
systems, review and approval of transactions with related parties, findings of internal audits [
investigations, whistle blower policy, monitoring the wssge of lunds from issue proceeds, review the
financial statcments, compliance with. the provizions of SEBI Prohibitiom of the Insider Tracding
Regulations at least once & financial year,
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The committee also verifiee the adequacy in the systems for internal contrals, to grant approvals for
related party transactions which are in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length
basis, scrutiny of inter-corporate leans and investments, besides recommending the appointment |/
removal of the statutory auditors, the internal auditors and fixing their remuneration and review of the
cifectiveness of audit process.

Composition & Meetings

As at 31 March, 2021 the committes comprised three directors. The committes comprised Mr. Ashok
Katra, Indepencdent Director as the chairman, Ms. Usha Ivengar as its members and Mr. Hemendranath
Choudhary, chairman of the board. The company secretary acts as the secretaty to the committee.
During the year, the committée met 4 times.

All members of audit committee have knowledge of financial management, audit and accounts. The
statutory auditors, the internal auditors and senior management are invited to attend the meetings of the
committee. The committee met the statutory auditors as well as internal auditers during the Vear,

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Terms of Refercnce
The rele of the committee is to determine the company’s policy on remuneration to executive directors

and scnior management, including periodic increments in ealary. The committee is also empowered to
determine the annual commission [/ incentives of the exccutive directors and the minimum
remuneration of the executive directors in the event of inadequacy of profits besides implementing,
remuneration including commission payable to non-executive directors, administering and
monitoring the employee stock optian plan / schemes of the company. The terms of reference inter alia
includes the role of the committee to further consider and recommend persons who are gualified for
board positiona, evaluate directors performance prior to recommendation for re-appointments, identify
persons  whe are qualified to be in senior management and recommend their appeintments,
remuneration payable and removal, formulate the criteda for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a director and devising a policy on beard diversity, determine whether
to extend or continue the terms of appointment of independent director on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation.

Composition & Meetinga
As at 31 March, 2021, the committee comprised Ma, Usha Ivengar as the chairman, Mr. Ashok Katra

and Mr, Hemendranath Choudhary as its members. The commitiee met once during the year ended
317 March, 2021.

Remuneration Policy
The success of any organisation in achieving good performance and governance depends on its

ability to attract quality individuals on the board. The company has in place a remuneration policy
- which is guided by the principles and objectives as enumerated in section 178 of the Act,

Currently, Mr. Hemendranath Choudhary is the Whole Time Director on the board. The
compensation to Mr. Mr. Hemendranath Choudhary is within the scale approved by the
shareholders. He iz also paid sitting fees for Committes Meetings. Remuneration paid to Mr.
Hemendranath Choudhary is Re. 12,00,000 p.a. other than sitting fees,

Your company is not paying any Compensation other than sitting fees to non-executive directors.
Non-Executive Directors of the Company are paid a siting fees of Re. 20,000 per meeting,
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STAEEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
As on March 31, 2021 Mrs. Usha Ivengar is the Chatrperson of the Committees with Mr, Ashok Katra I
and Mr. Hemendranath Choudhary as members.

Committee has met once in the period concerned,

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD, COMMITTEE AND GENERAL MEETINGS

All the Directors have attended all the meetings during the vear including general meetings.
During the year, the company passed special resolutions for the [ollowing items in Annual
General Meeting held on 10t December, 2020 at the registered office of the Company:

1. To Approve allotment of 1,65,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each pursuant to Regulation 170(2) of
the Chapter V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (la=ue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018

All the resolutions were passed with requisite majority by the sharehalders,
All the General Meetings of the Company were held at the Registered Office only. I

FOSTAL BALLOT

During the year, the company had not passed any special resclutions through postal ballot.
resolutions were passed with requisite majority by the shareholders,

FProposed resolutions through postal ballot: I
No special resolulion is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot,

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

The company annually conducts a secretarial audit by an independent practicing company
secrefary. For the year ended 31 March, 2021, M/s. AVS & Associates, CoImpany secretaries, have
conducted the secretarial audit and the certificate was placed before the board and attached 1o this
report.

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

Az required by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), quarterly audit of the company's
share capital is being carried out by an independent auditor with a view to reconcile the total share
capital admitted with National Securities Depoaitory Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL) and held in physical form, with the issued and listed capital. The certificate
issued by an independent practicing Chartered Accountant is submitted to the stock exchanges and
15 also placed before the board of directors.

CEQ/CFO CERTIFICATION

Chiel Gnancial officer have given a compliance certificate to the board with regard to financial
statements and internal control systems as contemplated under regulation 17(8) of the Listing
Regulations. I

COMPLIANCE REPORT
A detailed compliance report iz placed before the board every quarter and highlights of the report is
circulated to the board along with the agenda every quarter. The company secretary submits a
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compliance certificate to the board on a quarterly basis. The board reviews the compliance of all
applicable laws every quarter and gives appropriate directions, wherever necessary.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The hoard has laid down a *Code of Conduct” for all the board members and the senior managetment of
the company and the Code of Conduct has been posted on the website of the companv. All directors and
senior management personnel of the company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the
company for the year ended March 31, 2021, as envisaged in schedule V under regulation 34 {3) of the
Listing Regulations.

CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The board has adopted a code to regulate, monitor and report trading by ingiders in securities of the
company, The code inter alia requires pre-clearance for dealing in the securities of the company and
prohibits the purchase or sale of securities of the company while in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the company and during the period when the trading window is
closed. The board has further approved the code for practices and procedures for fair disclosure of
unpublished price sensitive information and pelicy governing the procedure of inquiry in case of actual or
suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive information. The code has also been hosted on the wehasite
of the compary,

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The certificate on compliance of corporate governance norms from a practicing company secretary is
annexed o the report.

DNESCLOSURES

Related party transactions I
All transactions with related parties that were entered into during the financial year were in the
ordinary course of busineas and were on an arm’s length basis. There were no material transactions
with related parties ie., transactions of the company of material nature, with its promoters, the
directors or the management, their subsidiares or relatives, ete., that may have potential conflice with
the interest of company at large.

The board has put in place a policy on related party transactions and the same has been uploaded on
the company’s website (weblink:http: / / www.flflindia.com)

Fee disclosures as required by clause 10(k}, Part C, Schedule V of the Listing Regulations:
Total fees for all services paid by the company on a consolidated basis, to M/s. A. C. Bhuteria and

Company, statutory auditers of the company for the vear ended 31 March, 2021, is Rs.2,50,000 for
vearly andit and Rs.29,500 for Quarterly review repart,

Disclosure under Sexual Herassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal] Act, 2013:

During the year, the company had not received any complaint under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,

@/

A
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Whistle blower poliey [ wigil mechanism

The company has established a whistle blower mechaniam to provide an avenue to raise concerna. The
mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimisation of directors / employees [ customers
who avail of the mechanism and aleo for appointment of an ombudsperson who will deal with the
complainta received.

Curing the year, no pergonnel have been denied access to the audit committes,

The policy is available on the website (weblink:http: / fwww. fiflindia.com).

FPenalties
There were several penalties imposed on the company by stock exchange{s) on non-comphance of

regulations with late filing during the last three years.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE NORMS

The company is locking for several candidatures to comply with all mandatory requirements of
corporate governance norms as enumerated in chapter IV of the Listing Regulations. The
requirements of regulation 17 to regulation 27 of the Listing Regulations and clauses (b) to (1) of the
sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46.

Due to COVID 19 pandemic and lockdowns imposed by governments from March 2020, Board is
finding it difficult to appoint candidates to comply with all the regulations of Listing Regulations.

The company has also adopted the following discretionary requirements specified in Part E of Schedule 11

in terms of regulation 27(1) of the Listing Regulations:

I Modified opinion{s] in audit report: Company’s financial statements have unmodified audit
apinions.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The audited financial resulis, guarterly resulis and other major announcements like notices of board
meetings, bool closures were published in English and Marathi and are also available on the company’'s
website_wune, {fffindio. com. Press releases are given in the leading newspapers and also posted on the
company's website,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
A management discussion & analysis forms part of the annual report.
GENERAL SHAREFHOLDER INFORMATION

A separate section on the above has been included in the annual report.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hemendranath Choudhary Usha Iyengar
Place: Mumbmni Whole - Time Director Director
Date; 05.005,2021 DIM:6e41774 DiIN; 03447551
i




Annual Report

Frontier Capital Limited
2020-2021

Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice
[Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause (10) (i) of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

AVS & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

Regd. Office:S-27,Haware Fantasia Business Park, Next to Inorbit Mall, Sector 30A, Vashi,
Navi Mumbai - 400703, Maharashtra, India
Email:avsassociates 16@gmail.com Tel: 022-49785430 / 49785431 / 27810071

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members,

Frontier Capital Limited

Add: 1503, Lodha Supremus, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel (west), Lower Parel, Mumbai -400013.

We have examined the relevant records, information, forms, returns and disclosures
received from the Directors of M/s. Frontier Capital Limited having
CIN: L65990MH1984PLC033128 and having registered office at 1503, Lodha Supremus,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (west), Lower Parel, Mumbai-400013. (hereinafter referred
to as ‘the Company’) produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause
10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications
(including Directors Identification @ Number ( ‘DIN’) status at the portal
www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to wus by the
Company & its officers, we hereby certify that, none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority for the financial year
ending on March 31, 2021.

Sr. Name of the Directors DIN Date of appointmentin
No. Company
1.| Usha Sundar Iyengar 03447551 | 01/04/2015
Hemendranath Rajendranath 06641774 | 21/04/2016
Choudhary
3.| Ashok Katra 07799527 | 15/03/2017
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Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For AVS & Associates
Company Secretaries

SD/-

Vijay Yadav

Partner

Membership No. A39251
C.P. No: 16806

UDIN: A039251C000910330

Place: Kalyan, Thane
Date: 06/09/2021

48




Frontier Capital Limited Annual Report
2020-2021

Independent certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
per provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended

AVS & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

Regd. Office:S-27,Haware Fantasia Business Park, Next to Inorbit Mall, Sector 30A, Vashi, Navi Mumbai -400703,
Maharashtra, India
Email:avsassociates 16@gmail.com Tel: 022-49785430 / 49785431 / 27810071

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS UNDER
SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To
The Members of
FRONTIER CAPITAL LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by FRONTIER
CAPITAL LIMITED (“the Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2021 as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Para C, D
and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and representations made by the management, we certify that the Company to the extent
applicable, has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Para C, D and
E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
except mentioned in the Secretarial Audit Report issued by us.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For AVS & Associates

Company Secretaries

SD/-

Vijay Yadav

Partner

Membership No. A39251

C.P. No: 16806 Place: Kalyan, Thane
UDIN: A039251C000910352 Date: 06/09/2021
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General Shareholders Information

Registered Office: I
1503, Lodha Supremus, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel Mumbi = 400 0163 001.

Company do not have any other branches.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN):
Le5990MHGE4 PLOO33128

Annual General Meating: I

Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 30" September, 2021 at 11.00 am ar the
registered office of the Company

Finaneial Year:
1 April to 31 March.

Dividend payment date: |
The Board has not declared any Dividend for the Vear,

Listing on Stock Exchanges:

Equity Shares:

BSE Limited

Flogr 25, Phiroze Jesjieebhoy Towers Dalal Street,
Fort, Mumbai - 400 001.

Btock Code ; 511243

ISIM:
The ISIN for the equity shares of the company has been us INESTTEQLO13,

Debt Securities:
Company do not have any debt securities izsued and listed.

Payment of Listing fees:
The listing fees for equity sharea FY 2021 were not paid to the stock exchanges.

Share price data:

Shares of the Company are listed but net traded duting last three years on the stock exchange.
Price of the shares is Ra. 3.72 with same 52 week High and low. Securitics are not suspended during
last 3 years. I

 Registrar & Share Transfer Agent:
Link Intime India Private Limited
C= 101, 247 park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400 083
Tel; 022-4018 62T
Fax: (2 2-40980060
E-mail: rat.helpdesk@mlinkintime. co.in

Share Tranafer Bystem:

Effective 1 April, 2019 SEEI has disallowed listed companies from accepting request for transfer of
securitics which are held in physical form. The shareholders who continue to hold shares in physical
form after this date, will not be able to lodge the shares with company [ its BTA for [urther transfer,
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Shareholders shall mandatorily convert them to demat form if they wish to effect any transfer, Only the

requests for transmission and transposition of securities in physical form, will he accepted by the
company / RTA,
All the shares of the Company are in demat form,

Nomination facility:

The company is accepting nomination forma from shareholders in the prescribed form, Al
those who are desirous of making a nomination are requested to contact the RTA,

Details of complaints received and redressed:

During the year, No investor service complaint was received and are pending as at 31 March,
2021,

Contact details of the designated official for assisting and handling investor Erievanees:
Ini terms of regulation F6(2}k]) of the Listing Hepulations, the contact details of the designated
official for assisting and handling investor grievances are as below:

Mr. Aniket NareshPrabhu

1503, Lodha Supremus, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel [(west), Mumbai - 400013
Maharashtra, India

Emait ID: f:unﬁnrlegaing_lﬂﬁ%ﬂgmaﬂ.-::cnu. Phone: +91 88793 10051

-

Credit Rating:
Company has not obtained any credit rating during the vear,

Distribution of Sharcholding as on 31 March, 2021:

3l No. Catepory MNo. of holders e Mo. of 25
o = shares N———
1 1-5 il 5 16.12 166,93,510 9959

2 5-31 26 83.88 68,653 041
' TOTAL ' B 31 100.00 167,62,162 100.00

Sharcholding Pattern:

Category _ No. of shares i
Promoter and promoter group 12453510 7453
Resident Individuals and others 42 68,653 25.47

TOTAL ' = 167,62 163 100.60_

For and on behalf of the Board of Directoss

W AN

Hemendranath Choudhary i Usha Iyvengar
Whate - Time Director Director
DIN: 6541774 DIN: 03447551

Flace: Mumbai
Date; 06.09.2021
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A. C. BHUTERIA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO
THE MEMBERS OF FROMTIER CAPITAL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of FRONTIER CAPITAL LIMITED (“the Caompany"), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 317 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and cther explanatory informatian (hereinafter referred to as “the Ind AS Financlal Statements)

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, Z013{“the Act”)
tn the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2021, its loss including
other comprehensive lass, Its cash flows and the changes In equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Dpinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with the Standards an Auditing [SAs) specified under section 143{10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, Dur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of qur report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Cade of Ethics issuad by the Institute of Charterad
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant ta our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and wa
have fuifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
fior our opinion an the Ind AS Financial Statermoents.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention te Note No. 37 of the Ind AS financial statements, which describes the management's
assessment of the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the significant uncertainties involved in developing
some of the estimates Involved in preparation of the Ind A5 financial statements including but not limited to
its assessment of liquidity and going concern, recoverable values of its loans, other financial assets and non-
financial assets. Based on information avallable as of this date, Management believes that no further
adjustments are required to the financial position. However, In view of the highly uncertain economic
environment impacting this industry, a definitive assessment of the impact is highly dependent upon
circumstances as they evalve in future and the actual results may differ from those estiodtgilas at the date
of approval of the Ind AS financial statements. b

Qur Opinion is not modifled in respect of the aforesaid matters,

Phone : 2230 6990, 2231 7128 E-mail ' m_bhuteria@yahoo.coin Website - www.acbhularia.com



Key Audit Matbers

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Ind A% financial statements of the current period, These matters were addressed in the contest
of our audit of the Ind AS financial staterments as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinlon on these matters, For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below 10 be the key audit matter to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
Ind AS financial statements section of our repart, including in relation to the matter, Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying Ind AS financial statements,

Descriptions of Key Audit Matters are given below-:

5| No. | Key Audit Matters Auditor's Responsa ]

1 Impairment of Financial Assets based
on Expected Credit Loss ("ECL'} faos
described jn NMote 3.5 of the ind A5
Financlol Statements)

Due o the significance of the
judgments used In both classifications
of loans into various stapes as well as
the computation of expected credit
losses on such financial assets as per Ind
A5 109, this has been considered as a
ke audit matter.

Financial instruments, which include
loans to  customers, represent a

the Company,
The Company has gross loans

| aggregating T 300.24 lakhs as at March
31, 2021,

Estimates regarding the impairment
provision against loans are based on the
expected credit loss model developed
by the Company hazad sn the guiding
principles prescribed under Ind AS 109,
As stated, In the notes to the financial
staterments for the year ended March
31, 2021, the impairment provision Is
based on the expected credit loss model
reguires  the management of the
Company to make significant judgments
in connection with related computation.
These include:

significant portion of the total assets of |

- Read and assessed the Company's impairment |
provision policy and their compliance with Ind
AS 108 and the governance framework
approved by the Board of Directors pursuant to
Resorve Bank of Iindia guldelines ssued on 13
March 2020

- Understood the Company's key credit
processes comprising granting, recording and
manitaring of loans as well as impairment
provisioning

- Read and assessed tha Company's impairment
provisioning policy as per Ind A5 109

- Obtained an understanding of the Company's
Expected Credit Loss {'ECL") methodology, the
underlying assumptions and performed sample
tests to assess the staging of outstanding
EXPOSUTES
Tested the ECL model, including assumptions
and underlying computation
Assessed the Exposure at Default used in the
impairment calculations on a test basis
Assessed the items of loans, credit related
contingent items as at the reporting date |
which are considered in the impairment
computation as at the reporting date

- Enguired with the management regarding
significant judgments and estimates involved in
the impairment computation and additional
management overlay provision arising fram the
effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and
evaluated the reasonableness thereof;

fi}"—"-{"':ﬁh
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[a]l segmentation of the loam portfclic

into homogenous pool of borrowers;

(B) identification of exposures where

there is a significant increase in credit
| risk and those that are credit impaired,

[c) Dewermination of the 12 month and

life-time probability of default for each
! of the segments identified; and

(d] Loss given default for wvarious

pxposures based on past trends [
| exparience, managament astimates
| ote,,

Additionally, the economic and business
| consequences  of the COVID 19
| pandemic as described in MNote 37 to

the Ind A5 financial statements.

Mote 3.5 to the Ind AS  Financial

Statements explains the various matters

that the management has considered

for developing this expected credit loss

model.

Infarmation Other than the Ind AS financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the ather information, The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS finarcial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our cpinien on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
intormation and, in doing so, consider whether the other infermation is materially inconslstent with the Ind
A5 linancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of
this ather information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repart in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accardance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, specified under section 133 of the Act, This responsibility
alsa includes maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and ather irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making Judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due ta frawd or errar.




In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basls of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the Company

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements

Qur ohjectives zre to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
canducted in accordance with 585 will always detect @ material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements
can arise from frawd or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A part of an awdit in accordance with 5485, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also;

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whethar
due 1o fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk aof not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
frawd may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contraol.

2 Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the aedit in order to design audit procedures
thatl are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)(i) of the Companles Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate Internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectivencss of
such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the poing concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty axists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that 3 material uncertainty exists we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosuras in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Qur cenclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going conoern.

. Evatuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underying transactions
and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually r in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasanably knmuisrdgq_ahhg ul;er of the Ind
A5 financial statements may be influenced. We consider guantitative materlalit a%rﬂ quah‘tutpé, factars in




{1 planning the scope of our audit wark and in evaluating the results of aur work; and (il} to evaleate the
effect of amy identified misstatements in the Ind A5 financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance In the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our suditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, wea
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

ther Matker

Due to restrictions imposed by the Government and to restrict the spread of COVID-19 the audit
finalization process, for the year under report, was carried out from rermote locations i.e. other than the
office of the Company, based on the data/ details made available and based on financial
information/records remitted by the management through digital medium. Our repart 15 not modified in
respect of this matter. '

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. Asrequired by the Master Direction- Non-Banking Financlal Companies Auditor's Repart (Reserve Bank)

Directions, 2016 {"the Directions”) issued by the Reserve Bank of India {"the Bank”) in exercise of powers
conferred by Section 45MA[14) of the Reserve Bank of Indla Act, 1934 and an the basis of such chacks as

we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations glven to us, we horeby
report on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the sald Directions to the extent applicable;

i The Company is engaged In the business of a non-banking financial institutlon and has duly abtained
a Certificate of Reglstration (COR) from the Bank.
fl. The Company has more than 50% of its assets in financlal assets and it has earned more than 50% of

its income from Il'inanr:‘lal assets. In terms of its principal business criteria [financial asset/income
pattern) as on 31* March, 2021, the Company is entitled to continue to hold CoR issued by the Bank.

lii. The Cﬂmiﬂﬂﬂ_'ﬂ does not meet the Net Owned Fund requirement as laid down in the Master Direction
- Nen-Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Comparny
{Resarve Bank) Directlons, 2016,

. The Board of Directors of the company have duly passed a resolution for non-acceptance of the
“Public Deposits” within the meaning of paragraph 3 Bgtion, - : i

g of paragraph 3 [xv) of the Mm?ﬁ@% Non-Banking
.L.-.-""r- -\""f: :";.
<( Kgypapst=l




Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits {Reserve Bank) Directions 2016, for the financial
yvear ended 315t March, 2021,

w. The Company has nat accepted any “Public Deposits” within the meaning of paragraph 2 {xv] of the
Master Direction - Mon-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits [Reserve Bank)
Directions 2016, during the yearended 31st March, 2021,

vi. The company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting
standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms
of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company — Mon-Systemically Impartant Mon-Deposit
taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016,

vil. The Company is not systematically important non-deposit taking NBFC as defined in Master Direction
- Man-Banking Financial Company - Systemically iImportant Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit
taking Company [Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016& accordingly para 3(C){Iv) of the Directions is not
applicable.

2. As reguired by the Companies [Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Gevernment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A", a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicakble.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during
the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

4, As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

Ul
i)

i

Vi)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and helief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

Im our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In cur opinion, the aforecald Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specilied under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors 85 on 31 March, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164({2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report In “Annexure B,

vli) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinien and to the best of our Infermation and
according to the explanations given to us:

3. The Compary does not have any pending litigations which would Impact it financial position.




b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

[ Thera were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company except Unpaid dividend of T 4,300/-.

For A, C. Bhuteria & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 303105E

et

Bikas Kumar Burmwal
Partner

s Membership No. 311785
UDIN; 21311785AAAAEDESEY

Place of Signature; Kelkata
Date: 18-08-2021



Annexure 'A' to Independent Auditor’s Report referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading of “Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements™ of our report of even date.

{i)

(i)

(i)

(v

{wi)

[ ]

[a)

(b)

(€)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year,
which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature if its
business, Mo discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have an immovable property held as fixed assets, therefore paragraph
e} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have any inventory and therefore paragraph 3(i) of the Order is naot
gpplicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and examination of
records we considered necessary, the Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured, o
Companies, firms, limited Bability partnerships or parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 1B9 of the Companies Act, 2013 ['the Act’], Accordingly, paragraph 3{iii)) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

I our apinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us and examination of

recards we considered necessary, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 &
Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans made, as applicable. The company has not
given any guarantee or security on behalf of any party.

On the basis of our examination of books and records of the Company, in our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted depasits during tha
year and therefore the directives lssued by the Reserve bank of Indla and the pravisions of Sections

73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there
under are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company |5 not required to maintaln Cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act 2013,

l@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
o1 the books and records of the Company, the company is not regular In depositing undisputed

statutory dues {except income-tax) and other material statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities,

According to the infermation and explanations given ta us and on the basis of our examination
of the books and records of the Compa ny, o undisputed amounts payable in respect of income
tan, G5T, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31at March 2021 for &
period of more than six months from the date they became payable, except for Service tax
payable under reverse charge mechanism amounting to ¥ 18,600/-, Prafession Tax of T13,000/-,
T0% of ¥ 6,53,285/- and Goods and Services Tax of T 2,34,000/-.

{b] According to the information & explanation give to us, there are no dues of
other applicable Statutory Dues which bave not been deposited on account of




(i)

ix)

(il

(i)

[=ill}

[xiv)

(xv)

[l

The Company does not have any lpans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks or
government, The company has not issued any debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3[wiii) of the Order is nat applicable,

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 {ix) of the Order i5 not
applicabla.

On the basizs of gur axamination of books and records of the Company and according to the
infarmation and explanation provided to ws, no fraed by the company or on the Company by its
officers or employeas has beon noticed or reported during the year.

On the basis of our examination of books and records of the Company and according to the
infermation and explanation provided to us, the managerial remuneration paid is according to the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule v of the Companies Act 2013.

In aur apinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 128 of the Companies Act, 2013. Details of transactions with the related parties have been
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
recards of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the vear and therefore
paragraph 3[xiv] of the Order is not applicable.

According te the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
recards of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is required te be registered under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934
a5 a Naon-Banking Finance Company and the registration has been so obtained.

For A. C, Bhuteria & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo. 303 105F

=t

Bikas Kumar Burnwal
Partner

1]
i
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Place of Signature: Kolkata Sl et Membership No. 311785
Date; 18-08-2021 UDNN: 21311785AAAAEDBOE9



Annexure 'B° to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference ta the financial statements of Frontier Capital
Limited {"the Company"} as of 31st March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial contral with reference to these financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAF), These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’'s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls aver financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted aur audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Mote™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be preseribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those
standards and the Guidance Note regquire that we cemply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
matenal respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of intermal financial controls with reference to the financial statements Included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financlal statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal contral based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
Including the asssssment of the risks of material misstaterment of the Ind AS financial slatements,
whether due to fraud or errar,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements. WTE




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

A compamy's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements s a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rellabllity of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial staterments Tor external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements includes those paolicies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accardance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3] provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acgulsition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the Internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the intemnal financial control with reference to the financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial contrals with
reference to the financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2021, based on the intermal financial control
with reference to the financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nate on Audit of Internal Einancial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For A. €. Bhuteria & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 302105E
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| Bikas Kumar Burrmwal

Partrer

v o :,,, |"-'1ern bership No. 311785
= UDIN: 21311785 AAAAEDBEIE

u. LIATA ;

Plzace of Signature: Kolkata
Rate: 18-08-2021



FRONTIEE CAFITAL LIMITED
CIN: L65990MH1984PLCO33128

1503, Lodha Supremus, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (west), Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013

As perour report of even date attachod,

For A.C. Bhuteria & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
IE.U Firm Regn Moy, 2031 ']-:-F'

Bikas Humar Burnwal

Fariner, Membership No; 311785
Date: 18.08.2021

Place; Holkata

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 I
{" in Lakha]
Partlculors HNaote Na. As at As at
31039021 31.03.2020
AEEETEI
ER Hn.:lnci.n.l Azspts
B, Cash and Cash Equivalents i 5 ih36 0.33
b, Baik balances ther | r'|'|r:|r.| 'E.u.s'l'. and Cash Equivalents [ a4 o
. Leains ) 7 Q9500 G180
_| & trher Financial Asscis ] .54 0.7y
£ Total Finarial Asscis 226.34 27345
{ 2. Non-Financial Asscts |
| & Current Tax Assets [He1) B | E] - B
b, Property, Flant and Equipment ] | 10 - 3
Total Non.Financwl Asseta | . :
TOTAL ASSETS | 226.3% ITE A5
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
_Financtal Liabillties
- Payalbles
|| Trade Payehiles 12 =
fi) Total cutstanding dues of micro and smsll enterprises y - -
fiil Total outstending does of crediiors other than meo and 2049 1854
small pnieTprises
[{I}] -I:IrJ:u:r !'-'.J_l,'nb'lus. 13
til ']'l.adal EI.I:l.EI:I:InI._"LﬂE dies of mucro and smell epterpirises = = =
lidi “Total oulstunding dues ©f crediors sller N mbeio gl 1656 045
e.'rnn‘]‘l_r:_gd_:h_m]?nus {
b Barrgwinge {Cher than Tebe Seeurities) 14 508 | 4,00 |
. Other Financial Lisbilities - 15 CHTZR ] 24 45 |
Total Finansial L.abilities _B9.31 EG.AE
Mon-Flaaneial Liakilties
A, Currcnt Tax Liabilites {Met) 16 ZRBY. B HY
h. Praviginns 17 - jare
|| . Crtheer Ron-Financial Liabilities T ] I L. 6B i
11 Tatal Non-Financial Liabilitles 14,56 .70
| i |
&, Equily Share Capital 13 1 firh 22 | fr7 .00
b CHbher Equity | 20 | 11,553,758 (1 G593
Tatal Equity | 123,47 207.20
_ TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 226,34 273,45
| Significant .llbi.‘-uunrh'i; Policios a; a -
The aceom ing nates are intogral part of the financial statements. z

For ;0d on behalf of the Board of Directors

W Ftn;HElplm Limited
oy Hemendranath Choudhary Ashok Katra
= Whaile Tirme DIHE‘-E{-DF fndependent Dhiroctor
o) ekl
1 & e

fer Ani¥et Naresh Prabhu
rgclior Camiparn Seerefary & CFO
Date: 18.08.2021
Place: Mumbal




Etatement of Profit & Loss
For the year ended Mareh 31, 3021
|~ in Lakhs)
Partisalars Haote Hao. For the Yeur | For the Year
anded J ended
EE 1032021 | 31.03.2020
(1) Revenve em Dperations |
- [ntereat lncome 21 27,78 | D194
Total Revenue from Dperations (1) i 27.26 | 1,99
{l1) Other income i ] Aaso i 61,40
{I1] Total Income (1) + {11] 30,87 ] B339
{1} Bxprnses . | EE———
-Finance Costs 23 1.15 33 5
-Employes Benelity E:-_g:-url:-:s | 249 149,13 18.71
-Leprscialiog a.r-d .‘I.nu:lrf_sad:m-"l. Expen ses I 10 a L
«Cither Expenscs 25 05,437 492,13
Total Expenses [TV} = 115.70 G540
|_[V) Profit before exceptional ftems and tax [TI0) - [TV) (24,83} [12.01)
| [V} Exceptional Items -
- Loss an | I:-un'.lﬂ'm.un ni' CCH i E-u:_|_|1:|r_',' = Gl&6.03
[VTI} Profit before tax (V) - [VI) {883 628,04}
| [NTI) Tax Expense
-Current Tax -
1 ~Delerred tax - .
_ Het Tax Expensc (VT -
iﬂ-} Proflt for the year [VIE) - [VTII) (B4.83) [628.04)
. {B) Other Comprebensive Income 5 e
| @ | Other coooprehensive income oot 1o be teclissdfed o prolt o fess in . - -
#sihesquent poriods
{ii} | Other comprehensive income w0 be reclassibed W prolil or Joss in =
subeequent peripds:
| Other comprehensive income/{Ioss] for the year [B] = i -
Total Comprehenslve Tneome for the vear [A+E) [B4.E3) [EZE_04)
Ear r|.||'-ga pig cquity share of © 10 each 20
Dﬁ.-uru: c I [|! .51} In25)
| Dt 1 10.31) [G.25)
Stpnifcant Accounting Policies 3
The accompanylng notes are Integral part of the findacial statements,
.l’.quer aur repott of even date attached.
For AC, Bhuterin & Co. For and on behalf of the Bogrd of Directors
Choastered Accounianis Frontier Capital Limited
ICA] Firm FHepn Ko, 303106E j [' C‘Ji"‘
Hemendranath Choudhary Ashiok Katra
Whele Mg fereoisr Independent Director

d
Bikas Kumar Burnwal she Iyengar Aniket Naresh Prabhu
Partner, Membership No: 331785 Dhrectiar Coripeeny) Secrelary & CFO
Date: 18.08.2021 Date: 15.08.2021

Place: Kolkatn Place: Mumbal




Date: 18.08,2021 Date: 18.08.2021
Flace: KEolkata Place: Mumbhbai

= Cash Flow Statement For the Year Ended 31+ March, 2021 )
_ ] [ in Lakh
Partigulars Year Ended r‘l!'un'r Ended
— IL.03.2021 | 31.03.2020
A CASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Mek Profit/ [Loss) Before Exceptional Ttems and Tax (8483 [12.01)
Adjustments For : i
Bliad Dytits - 2,93
Intesest an Delit Securities o - 33.93
[ntenest an Borrowiigs Qther than Delrt Securities 0.30 .30
Impalrment Allawsnces _ B 7524 -
Reverssl of Contingent Provision against Stondarnd Assers oy 001
Linbility ne Lenger Beouired Woitten Back - (S6.46) |
L _|"['nrzncsr Ineame 27 .25 {2199}
E Interest an Income Tax Redundl = 453 |
| ﬂ]ﬂll'lHﬂ_E Pn:ﬂt Before Working Capital EhanEu [26.57) (58.23) |
Mavetents in W-u-rh:ing' Capdtal |
Decroase) (Increass) in:
Bank balanees siher than Cash and Cash Equivalenis 0.00 1.5
Loans [ [250.060
Ciher F:n:u.ru::-u.'l &:5:15 f},zﬁ 0,74
Dither Non-Finaneial Asspts - 2204
Payables
Traede Payaliles T.05 T30
Diher Payahles ~ 110 [15.33]
Other Financial Liabilities _ 12.83 12.%6 |
Other Men-Finaneial Liabibnes 440 F.64
| Cash Generated From Operations [4.55) [27T.46]
|| Drirect Thaxes Paid [Het) - 2. 55
Interest Received i =
{ ¥et Cash Flow From [Uscd In) Operating Activities (4] {4.55] [252.01]
8. | CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING .ﬂ.ETI"i."ITIE:!- i
| [ Met Cash Flow From [Used In| Investing Activities T 3 | = 0
C. | CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ] |
| Proceeds fioin Tssue of Equily Shares I - a50.00 |
| Proceeds/[Repayment) from Borrowings | 4,68 1.52 |
Interest Prid = =T
Net Cash Flow From {Used In) Financing Activities ich 4. 68 I 25050
et Tnersnsg in Cash & Cash Equivnlents i ABHE) 0.13 | 11,93
Cash & Cash Eguivalents at the beginning of the Yess 23 215
Cash & Cash Eqaivalenis at the end of the Year .36 23
Bignificant Accounting Policles [ 3
| The accompanying nobes are integral part of the finansial slatemints,
For A.C, Bhuteria & Co, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chrrtered Acadurtants Frontler Capital Limited
TCAT Firm Regn Mo, EIEI:]-lDEE CLAE{\
‘M —
H-E'ﬂitnﬂ'r‘nnnth Choudhary Ashok Katra
Whole Time T IﬂdFjJEﬂFE‘J i
W
/ =
Bikas Kumar Burnwal Anfket Naresh Prabhu
Partner, Membership No: 3117585 Comprny Secretarys & CRO




Hotes on cash flow:

1]

2)

4

4]

Cash Flow Stateement has been prepared under Indirect meathod in accordance wilth Indian
Accounting Standard [Ind AZ| ¥ "Staterment of Cash Flows".

Represents Cash & Cash Equivalents as indiacted in Mobe No, 5 to the Financial Statemsnts,

Diebt Reconeciliation Statement in accordance with IND AS 7 az under:

31.03.2021 | 31.03,2020
[ in Lakhs) | | in Lakhs
Dpening Balances

Short Term H":'”.'.:".'."r.i.[!EEn .00 | SE.48

| Movements z
_Short Term Borrowings 4.93 (54.48)

Closing Balances
Short Term Borrowings B.53 &4.100

The fully paid up preference share capital of the Company being 1,490,000 0.01% Non-Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares of Re. 1,000 each [NCRPS) aggregating to Rs, 14,00,00,000/- had
been altered fvaried to 1,40,000 0.01% Compulserily Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of
the Company {CCP3) of Rs. 1,000/- each amcunting to Rs. 14,00,00,000/- and thereafter
converted with immediate effect into 1,40,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each by way of
preferential allotment basis in due compliance with section 42, 48, 55 and &2{ljic} and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder.

For A.C, Bhuterin & Co, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chiertered Accourthan s Frontier Capital Limited
ICAI Firm Regn No, 302105E W <

Hemendranalh Choudhoary Aghbdlk: Katra
Whole Time Director Indepa 1t Dhrector

'-.__ r i
Bikas Kumar Burnwal ol sha [yengar Aniket Maresh Prabhu
Purtner, Membership Mo: 311785 Lhrector Compoany Secretaryy & CFO
Date: 18.08.2021 Date: 18.08.2021
 Place: Kolkata FPlace: Mumbai




| " in Lakha)
Al | Equity Bhare Capital
Equity Shares of = 10/- each isswed, subscribed and fully poid up
| Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2019 T, 23
ﬂmy'ﬁn equity share capital during e vear - lssue af Share Capitnl 1 650,00
Balonee as ot March 31, 2020 1,5T6.33
ﬂt':_l'a'uhgl:sin eulty share capltal during the year -
| Balance as at March 31_ 2021 1,676,22
bj l Other Equity
| " in Lokhs)
Partigulars Statutury | General | Retained Eqaity Total
FESETRE Reasrva darnings | Component of
Com pound
Finanaial
Instrument
Bolanee ax at Apsil 01, 2019 85,23 11.86 {1,853.03) 911.34 |B40. 58]
Fraofit) (Loss) for the year - (B25.04) |628.04)
Cither Comprehensive Incams == - = B
Transfecred ta stitutoTy reserve = —r R N 1 =
| Balance as at March 31, 2020 §9.23 11.B6 | [2,481.37) T T {1,468.92)
Praft) (Loss] for the year - -~ | [B4.B3 [B4.B3]
Cither comprebuaive meonme . - - - -
Transferred 10 stalulony rescrve ' = - - - .
. Compelesry Convertible Preference Shares - - | a B =
Balance as at March 31, 2021 B9.23 1LB6 | (2,366.20) 811,36 {1,553.75)

For A.C. Bhuteria & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Regn No. 303 103

ANTER S,
Ll Y i
<[ koLEATA [P

Hemendranath Choudhary
Whaole Time Director

. + \I‘.J"
Bikas Kumar BEnrnwal sha Hjengar
Partcer, Membership No: 311785 Direcior

Date: 18.08,2021
Place: Murnbai

Date: 18.08.2021
Place: Holkata

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors

Frontier Capital Limited

Ashok Katra
Indepandant hrestor

Aniket Nerezh Prabhue
Conmprarny Secrefary & CFO




Frontier Capital Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Stacement for the vear ended March 31, 2021

1.

Corporate Information

Frontier Capital Limited (*the Company”) (CIN L65990MH1984PLCO33128) iz a public lmited
company domiciled in India. The Company is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company is &
non-systemically important non-deposit taking non-banking finance company, engaged in  the
business of granting of loans and advances. The financial statements are presented in Bupees 1)
which is also fanctional currency of the Company.

Statement of Compliance

“The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards (Tod A3 netified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act) read with the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other
relevant provisions of the Act. Any directions issued by the RBI or other regulators are
implemented as and when they become applicable,

For all periods up to and including the yvear ended March 31, 2019, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standasds notified under the section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies [Aceounts) Rulea, 2014
(Indian GAAP or previous GAAP). The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 were
the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS."

2.1 Basis of preparation

“The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain Anancial
assets and financial Habilities measured at fair value or amortised cost [refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments|,

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR] and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

The regulatory disclosures as required by Master Directions for Non-Banking Financial Company -
Hon-8ystemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company Directions, 2016 issued by the RBI ['RBI
Master Directions? to be included as a part of the Notes to Accounts are prepared as per the Ind AS
financial statements, pursuant to the RBI notification on Implementation of Indian Accounting
Standards, dated March 13, 2020."

"Estimation of uncertainties relating to Global Healtheare Pandemic from COVID - 19

The Company has considered the posaible effecta that may result from the pandemic relating to
COVID - 19 on the carrying ameount of assets including loana, other financial and pon-financial
assets ete, In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the
economic conditions because of the pandemic, the Company, a3 at the date of approval of these
firancial statements has vaed internal and external sources of information, The Company expects
that the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID - 19 on the
Company's financial statements may differ from that sstimated as at the date of approval of these
financial statements,”

2.1.2 Presentation of financisl statements
"The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liguidity. An analysis regarding recovery or
settlemnent within 12 months after the reporting date [current] and more than 12 months after the
reporting date (non— current) is presented in notes 1o the financial statements.

Financial azacts and financial habilitics are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are
only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend
to gettle on & net basis in all of the following circumstances

¢ The normal course of business

* The event of default

* The event of inselvency or bankruptey of the Company and/or its counterparties®




Frontier Capital Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

Bignificant accounting policies

3.1 Financial instruments - initial recognition

3.1.1 Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, and borrowings are
initially recognised on the trade date, {2, the date that the company becomes @ party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans are recognised when fund transfers are initiated to
the customers’ account or cheques for disbursement have been prepared by the company |as per
the terms of the agreement with the borrowers). The company recognises debt securities and
borrowings when funds reach the company.

J.1.2  Imitial measurement of financial instruments

The classilication of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms
and the business model for managing the instruments, Financial instruments are initially
measured at their fair value, except in the case of financial assets and financial ligbilities recorded
at amortised cost, transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from, this amount,

3.1.3  Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

“The company classifies all of its financial assets besed on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset's contractual terms, measired at:
= Amorhsed cost”

3.2 Financial assets and liabilities

3.2.1 Bank balances and Loans at amortised cost

“The Company measures Bank balances and Loans at amortised cost if both of the following

conditions are met;

* The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
arder Lo collect contractual cash Aows and

* The contractual terms of the financial assct give rise on specified dates to cash flaws that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding The
details of these conditions are cutlined below,

Business model assessment
The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how iL manages

Company’s financial assets to achieve jts business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a

higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on obeervable factors such aa:

* How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
mlel are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management persannel

* The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are manaped

* How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

* The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s
AsseLsment

*  The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking
‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are
realised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations, the Company
does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business
madel, but H@qtﬂ@rﬂjﬁﬁ such information when assessing newly originated or newl 2
finaneial eﬁsj‘jiuth zoingftrward,

o

@ |: :{.’:5.1-:;.?9 o) ﬂf’
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Frontier Capital Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financlial Statement for the vear snded Mavch 31, 2021

~The SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractus] terms of
financial to identify whether they meet the SPPI test,

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at indtdal
recoghition and may change over the life of the financial assct (for example, if there are repayments
of principal or amortisation of the premium/dizcount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assesament, the
Company applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the
financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.”

3.2.2 Equity instruments at FVOCI

“The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss,
unless the Company s management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its equity
investments as equity instrumenta at FYOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity
under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading Such
classification is determined on an instroment-by- instrument basis.

Gains and lossea on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss, Dividends are
recognised in profit or loss as dividend ineome when the right of the payment has been established,
except when the company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI {Other Comprehensive Income). Equity
instruments at FYOCI are not subject to an impairment asscasment.”

3.2.3 Debt securities and ether borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
issue funda, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

3.2.4 Undrawn loan commitments

“Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment,
the company is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer, Undrawn loan
commilments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

The nominal contractual value of undrawn lean commitments, where the lean agreed to be
provided is on market terms, are not recorded in the balance sheet. The nominal values of these
commitments together with the corresponding ECLs are disclosed in notes.”

3.3 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company dees not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acruires, disposes of, or terminates a
business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified. The Company did not reclassify any of its
financial assets or labilitics in 2018-19 and 2019-20,

3.4 Derecognition of Anancial assets and liabilities
3.4.1 Derccognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

Finanecial assets

“A financial asset |or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets| ie derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset

have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the

financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial aaset if, and only if, either:

* The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
Or

* It retaing the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass- through' arrangement.




Frontier Capital Limited
Notes to the Stindalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

—

“Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual

rights to receive the eash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset], but assumes a

contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities, when all of the following

three conditions are met:

* The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected
equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full
recovery of the amount lent phus accrued interest at market rates

* The company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients

* The company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behall of the eventual recipients

without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows,

except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period
between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

* A tranafer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
* The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
Or
* The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred contrel of the asset
The company considers control to be tranaferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer, "

"When the Cempany has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of
the Company’s continuing invelvement, in which case, the Company also recoghises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantes over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum ameunt of consideration
the Company could be required to pay.

In case where transfer of a part of financial assets qualifies for de-recognition, any difference
between the proceeds received on such sale and the carrying value of the transferred asset is
recognised as gain or loss on de-recognition of such financial asset previously carried under
amortisation cost category. The resulting interest only strip initially is recognised at FYTPL."

3.4.2 Finanscial Liabilitics

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires. Where an existing financial lability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new Hlability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss,

3.5 Impairment of financial assets
3.5.1 Overview of the ECL principles
“The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt fnancial
assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments, in this section all referred to as
Tinancial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109,
The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset ithe
lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk
since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss
(12mECL) as cutlined-in Rotes:.,
The 12mECL is ﬂ'll:_.j“ﬁﬁi‘liun of ETECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default
financial inatrurnel‘.i";;'ﬂ'%tﬁxq.pﬁgi#ihlc within the 12 months after the reporting date ”
I'."I.:: Iﬂ”l."-l_' .-.
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Frontier Capital Limited
Motes to the Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

i S

"Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are caloulated on either an individual basis or a collective basis,
depending on the oature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments,

The company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased eignificantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default ccourring over the remaining life of the
financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Company categorizes its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage
3, a8 deascribed befowr

"Stage 1! When loans are first recogniged, the Company recognises an allowance based on
12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has
been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage X When a loan has shown a significant increase n credit risk since origination, the
Company records an allowance for the LTECLe. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the
credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired, The company records an allowance for the LTECLs.”

3.5.2 The Caleculation of ECLs

"The Company calculates ECLs to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an
approximatbion to the EIR, A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to
an entity in accordance with the contract and the cagh flows that the entity expects Lo receive.

The key elements of the ECL are summarized below:;

PD: The Probability of Default is an estirnate of the hkelihood of default over a given time horizon, A
defaull may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been
previcusly derecognized and is still in the portfolio.

EAD: The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date (in case of
Ztage 1 and Stage 2), taking into accournt expected changes in the exposure after the reporting
date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise,
expected drawdouwns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from miszed payments, In case
of Stage 3 loans EAD representa exposure when the default ccourred.”

LGD: The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs
at a given time. It is based on the difference between  the  contractual cash flows due and those
that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually
expressed as a percentage of the EALD,

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses
or gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset’s gross carrying value.”

"The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:;

Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result
from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date, The company calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a
default eccurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default
probabilitics ars applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by
an approximation to the original ETR.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
Company recorda an allowsnce for the LTECLs PDa and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the
instrument. The expected cash shortialls are discounted by an approximation to the original EIR.
Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit
losses for these loans. The method iz similar to that for Stape 2 azsets, with the PD set at 10090."

Loan commitment:When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Company
estimates the expected portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its sxpected
life. The ECL is then based on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan
is drawn down., The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at an approximation to the expected
EIR an the loan, For an undrawn loan commitment, ECLes are calculated and presented under
provisions.
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3.5.3 Forward Looking Information

“In ite ECL models, the Company relies on a broad range of forward looking information as
economic inputs, such as:

* GOF growth

» Unemplovment rates

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics
of the market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or
overlays are mace as temporary adjustments,”

3.6 Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their éntirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated
loss allowance, the difference recorded as an expense in the period of write off. Any subsequent
recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instrument on statement of profit and loss.

a.7 Restructured, rescheduled and modified loans

‘The Company sometimes makes concessiona or modifications to the original terms of loans such
as changing the instalment value or changing the tenor of the loan, as a response to the
borrower’s request. The Company considers the modification of the loan only before the loans gets
credit impaired.

When the loan has been rénegotinted or medified but not derecognised, the Company also
reassesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. The Company also
congiders whether the assets should be classified as Stage 3. Once an assct haa been classified as
restructured, it will remain restructured for a period of year from the date on which it has been
restrictured.”

3.8 Recognition of interest income

3.8.1 The effective interest rate method

Under Ind AS 109 interest income iz recorded using the effective interest rate ['EIR') method
for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amounl of the financial asaet.

3.8.2 Interest Income

The EIR [and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset] is calculated by taking into account of fees
and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a
rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the life of the loan,

3.9 Taxes

3.9.1 Current tax

"Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the ameunt
expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting
date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.,

Current income tax relating to items recognizsed outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss [either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in equity. Management
perivdically evaluates positions taken in the tax returne with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.”

3.9.2 Deferred Tax
"Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilifids Held $heir carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes,
Deferred tax liabjlitiés are reedanised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

! koLicara |2} i
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* [In respect of taxable temporury differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where

the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverae in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credite and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax asaets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unueed tax credits and unused tax logses can be utilised,
exoept:”

* *+ When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temperary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction that is net & business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss

* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foresseable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised,”

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is ne longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax agset to be recoversd.

"Deferred tax assets and liabiliies are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asaet is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws] that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items
recognized cutside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss |either in other comprehensive
income or in equity), Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation  to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exista to set off
Current tax assets against current tax Habilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxahle
entity and the same taxation authority,”
4,10 Property, Pant and Equipment

"Froperty plant and equipinent is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value, Changes in the expected useful
life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and
treated as changes in accounting estimates.
Depreciation on tangible property, plant & equipment is charged on written down value method
over the useful life /remaining useful life of the asset as per Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013,
Depreciation on assets purchased [/ acquired during the year is charged from the date of purchaze
{ acquisition of the asset or from the day the asset is peady for its intended use. Similarly,
depreciation on assets sold / discarded during the vear is charged up to the date when the asset is
sold / diacarded.
Intangible Assets consisting Softwares are amortised over the period of three years.”

"The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each finanecial vear end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Property plant and equipment ig derecognised on diaposal or when ne fulure economic benefits are
expecled from  its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset [calculated as the
differetice between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] s recognised
in other income ( expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised,
The date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains
control of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance
obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115"

3.11 Impairment of non-financial assets
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The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Group of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGOU excesds its recoverable amount, the asset is coneidered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amonnt.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value I
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the assel, In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share
prices for publicly traded companies or ether available fair value indicators.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs te which the individual assets are
allecated, These budgets and forecast caleulations generally cover a period of five years, For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is caloulated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth
year. To estimate cagh flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified, In
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-terin average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset in used.

“Impairment losses of continuing operations, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. I
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the assets or CGU'S recoverable
amount, A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
asgumptions used to determine the asact’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carryving amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior vears. Such reversal is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case, the reveérsal is treated as a revaluation increase.”

3.12  Retirement and Other Employes Benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company
recogniges contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service, If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognised as a linbility after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution aiready
paid excecds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in
future payment or a cash refund.

3.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation [legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying econcmic benefits
will be required to/ -settle.the obligation, and a relinble estimate can be made of the .ﬂ"} .

obligation, When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company detofii]

i level of pmvﬁﬁpJ Eﬁ-#lﬁlilblfnttng the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting
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rates specific to  the Hability, The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement
of profit and logss net of any reimbursement,

Contingent liabilities are recognised only when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, due [0 OCCUTTENCE oF non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future eventa, not wholly
within the control of the Company, or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of
future outflow of resources, or where a reliable estimate of the chligation cannot be made.
Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of
resources are provided far,

contingent assets are nol disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic
bencfits is probable,

3.14 Dividends on ordinary shares

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the diseretion of the Company. As
per the Companies Act, 2012 in India, a distnbution is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recopnised directly in equity,

3.16 Determination of Fair value

"The Company measures linancial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value ia the price that wonld be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahbility in an
orderly transaction betwesn market participants at the measurement date. The fair walue
measurement is based on the presumption that the tranzaction to ssll the asset or transfer the
linbility takes place either:

# In the principal market for the asset or lability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability”

"The principal or the most advantageons matket must be accessible by the company.
The fair value of an asset ar g liahility is measured uging the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or linbility, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest,
& fair value messurernent of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generabe cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,
The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the uae of unobservable nputa.”

“In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classificd based on

a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below;

* Level 1 financial instruments - Thoae where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted
quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or linbilities that the Company has access
to at the measurement date, The Company considers markets &= active only if there are
sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price gquotes awvailable on the balance
sheet date.

¢ & Love] 3 financial instruments - Thoss where the inputs that are used for valuation and are
gsignificant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the
entire period of the instrument's life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in actve markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and
observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied
volatilities, and credit spreads, In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or
location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to iteme that are comparable to the valoed
instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unpobzervable inputs which are
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significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as Level 3,

* Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more uncbservable input that is
significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and lizbilities that are recognized in the Anancial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lewest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument bagis
and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.”

3.16 Recognition of Income

"Revenue [other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue [rom
contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue ariging
from contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within I
Ind ASs,
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set
out in Ind 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or
more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and scts out the criteria for every
contract that must be met.

Step 2: ldentify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation 15 a promisc in a
contract with & customer to tranafer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration o
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services
to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract
that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the company satisfies a performance obligation.”

4.16.1 Interest on Overduc Balances and Other Charges
Overdue interest in reapect of loans is recognised upon realisation,

3.16.2 Fee Income & Bale of Service I
"8} Fee income from loana are recognised upon satisfacton of following:

i} Completion of service

ii] anud realisation of the fee income,
b} Servicing and collections fees on assignment are recognised upon completion of service,”

3.17 Dividend Income

Dividend income (inchuding from FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Company's right to
receive the payment is established, it is probahle that the ecanomic benefits azsociated with the
dividenid will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, This is
generally when the sharcholders approsve the dividend.

3.18 Earnings Per Share

‘Bagic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity sharcheolders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period,

The weighted ave ggl.i‘m‘mhﬂ' of equity shares cutstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjud forevents, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of pedETRE
equity shares, 1lEhs;lt have " changed the number of equity sharcs outstanding, i
correspordling ¢ ge'hlqﬁaﬁ?ﬂi'am Far the purpose of caleulating diluted camings per[5iinf

net profit or logg jor the ]zhﬁ'm:l attributable to equity sharcholders and the weightt
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number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares,”

a.19 Begment Information

“The accounting policies adopted for Segment reporting are in line with the accounting palicies of
the company with the following additional policies:

Revenme and expenses have been identified to segmente on the basis of their relationship to the
operating activities of the Segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the enterprise as a
whole and are not allocable to Sepments on a ressonable basis have been inehided under *Un-
allocahie”,

Asscts and liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship te the
aperating activities of the Segment. Assets and labilities, which relate to the enterprice as a
whole and are not allocable to Sepments on a reasonahle basis have been included under "Un-
allocable®.

3.20 Equity Investment in Subsidiaries and associates
Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures are carried at Cost in the Separate Financial
Statements as permitted under Ingd AS 27,

3.21 Cash Flow Statement

"Cash flows are reported using the indirect methed, where by profit / (loss] before 1ax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of cash management of the
COMPANY.

3.22 Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
mzignificant risk of changes in value.

3.23 Leases

"The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is hased on the substance af
the arrangement at the inception of the leaze. The arrangement is, or containg, a lease if fulfilment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 8 specific asset  or assets and the arrungement
conveys a right to use the asset or assets, cven if that right iz not explicitly epecified in an
ATrangemsng,

Operating Lease
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of

the leased assets are classified as operating leases, Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense in the Btatement of Profit and Loss an a straight line basis over the lease term.”

3.24  Trade reccivables
The company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach dees not require the company to  track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognisca impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reperting date, right from its Initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to
determine impairment loss allowance on pertfolic of its trade receivables, The provision matrix is
based on its historically ebserved default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates, At overy reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated for changes in the forward- looking estimates,
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Bignificant aceounting judgements, estimates and asgsumptions

“The preparation of the Company's financial etatements requires management o make judsements,
cstimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenscs, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities,
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require &
material adjustment to the carrving amount of assets or labilities affected in future perieds.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next finanecial year.” I

4.1 De-recognition of Financial instruments

"The Company enters into securitisation transactions where financial assets are transferred to &
structured entity for a consideration. The financial assets transferred qualify for derecognition only
when substantial risk and rewards are tronsferred.

This assessment includes judgements reflecting all  relevant evidence including the past
performance of the assets transferred and credit risk that the Company has been exposed to. Based
on this assessment, the Company believes that the credit enhancement provided purssant 1o the
transfer of financial assets under securitisation are higher than the loss incurred on the similar
portfolios of the Company hence it has been concluded that securitisation transactons entered by I
the Company does not qualify de-recognition since substantial risk and rewards of the ownership
his not been transferred. The transactions are treated as financing arrangements  and the sale
consideration received is trented gs borrowings."

4.2 Fair value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer & lHability in an orderly transaction in the principal [or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price] regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of I
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of
valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and
estimates include considerations of liquidity and medel inputs related to items such as credit risk
(both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. For further
details about determination of fair value please sce Fair value note in Accounting policy.

4.3 Impairment of Financial Asset

“The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requines

fudgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and I

collateral values when determining impairment logses and the assesament of a significant increase

in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in

different levels of allowances.

The Company's ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying

assumptions regarding the cheice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the

ECL maodels that are considered accounting judgements and estimates inchude:

* The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so

allowanceas for financial asscts should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative

assessment

* The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on & collective basis

* Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

* Determination of fompetary, adjustments as qualitative adjustment or overlays based o brsm

range of forward leoking informgation as economic inputs i

It has been thﬁ_:ﬁpmpq.:‘gg{q '|'_|:_|5|:'||i¢1-' to regularly review ita models in the context of s

experience and ad_ru.ft wheﬂ}iu sary,”
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4.4 Provislons and other contingent liabilities

"When the Company can reliably measure the outfliow of economic benefits in relation to a specific
case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision apainat the
cagze, Where the probability of outflow is considersed to be remote, or probable, but a reliable
estimate cannot be made, a contingent liahility iz disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement 1s required to conclude on these
eatimates.”

4.9 Btandard issued but not vet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ["MCA"] notifics new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020,

4.5 Recent Pronouncements :

On March 24, 2021, the Ministty of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended
Schedule ITT of the Companies Act, 2013, The amendments revise Division I, IT and 11 of Schedule
Ill and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division II which relate to
companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards] Rules 2015 are;

Balance Sheet:

Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity
share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current
reporting period.

Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

Specified format for ageing schedule of trade recelvables, trade payables, capital work-in-progreas
and intangible asset under development,

If & company has not used [unds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and
financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used,

Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved
schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovahle
property not held in pame of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial
persennel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.,

Statement of Profit and Loss:

Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (C3R), undisclosed income and
crvpbo or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming
part of the standalone financial statements.

The amendmente are extensive and the company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as
required by law,

B ] CARH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [ in Lakhs)
Particulars Ag at: As at
31.03.2021 | 31.03.2020
Cash on hand | - -
Bafanees 10ith banks l
-Em CUITENT ACCOLLNLE 036 023
Tatal 036 D23

ﬂﬁg'{lf ff,i:i'e"%'
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Particulars A at Az at
A1.03. 2021 | 31.03.23020
-In Deposit Accounts - Original metuercity mare than 3 months -
-Im earmarked secouniy
| -In Unnpadd Dividend Acoountis 0.4% 044
Total 0. 44 LRG3
T [ LOAKE [ in Lakhs})
Particulars A at Ag at
21.03.2091 | 21 03,2020
L At Amortised Cost
 VUnsecured
(i} Terim Loans 200,34 271,90
i Taotal - Giross 300,24 271.99
Lesa: Impairment Allowance [75.24) .
o Tatal - Met Z2E.00 271.99
All lvans are in India granted to indivldusls or entities other than public sector.
An gnalyais of chatges in the groes corrying amount and corresponding BCL allowances in relations to loans:
[ in Lakha)
Partleulars Gross Carrying Value Impairment Allowances
Stage | Stage | Singe Total Singe | Stage Htage 3 Taotal
= 1 2 3 1 2
Term Loaans 1
Crpaning a8 on Apcdl 01, 2019 271.99 s = 271,99 - = =
Mew Apactz Orlginated) Ineresse | - . - . .
i Existing Assets |
Exposung d.t:—:tmp‘und. ! - - -
mmuatiired
Closing nmum:h 31, 2020 | 27199 | - . 271.99 . - -
“Opening as on Aprll O1, 2020 | 271.99 | - = 27199 | - E 5
Mew Assets Orlginated) Incresse | 27.28 e = 2728 75,24 75.24
im Exisling Asseds) Interest
Expasure dle-TegnEndsed ! - = . . . = B
matured ) pepadd oo
Closing &8 on March 51, 20zl .27 u = 209,27 - - 75,24 i TH.24
8 | OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET "I in Lakhs) |
Particalars As gt I As at
21.03.2031 | 31.03.2030
Unsecared - conidersd pood junless otherwise stated)
At amortised cost
Cther advances 054 | 078
0.54 i 0,78
- 1
9 | CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET} " In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
Aalvemee Tax [ T]:IS-_:LHI.FPIPI'J'mQ_'.mJu
{ & gy .- w7
7 -
f i
4 I ATA 1=
| KoLK /)u, 0
%‘tﬁ‘\ o il
.;% e P f\-\. - ‘j{"
“in;,i'ﬂ g
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10. PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIPMENT

|" in Lakhs)

Farticulars

e

Gru=s Carrying Amount

Vighicles

Total

Deemed cost as at April 01, 2019

i4.00

Additions

I‘-llmmi&

Gross carrying amount ax at March 31, 2020

Additions*

Drispasals

Otoss carrying amount as at March 31, 2021

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balanes as at April 01, 2018

Depreciation for the voar

Lepregisation on disposals

Balance as st March 31, 2020

Depreciabion for the year

Depreciation oo disposals

Balanee an at Mareh 31, 2021

Mot Carrying amonnt

A= at April 01, 2019

“As st March 31, 2020

Az at March 31, 2021

Muorch, H1A.

Hate The company had ¢lected 0 continwe with the carrying valae for all of its property, plant and i i
wiuipment as récognised in
the ﬂ.nan-:i_al slaternents as at the date of ransition w Ind AS Le. 1st April, 2018, mtaaﬁreﬁ a= per the previous GAATP amd use
that as its deemed cost az at the dage of transition. The carrying value as at Ist April, 2018 AENOuntng to * 0.73 Lakhs of
Fropecty, plant and equipment represents gross cost of © 14 Lakhs net of accumulated depreciation of = 1336 Lelths as 8t 31at

11 | OTHER KON FINANCIAL ASSETS

FParticulars

As at 31.03.2021

Unascured - donsidered good |unless otheradae anated) g

[ in Lakhs) |
As st 31,03.3020

Frepaid eonem ses
Liveoame Tax Paid

| 12 | TRADE PAYAELES

Particulars

As at 31,03.2021

;ﬁlﬂtﬂ! cubatanding dwes of micro and small enterpeises

26,4%

i) Tatal autstanding dues of creditors other than micrs And amall enlerprises 18,54
|| {Boefer Note 28§
26,4949 I 15.534
E




Frontier Capital Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

13 | OTHER FAYABLES - [ in Lakhs)
Particulars = A at 31032021 | Asat I31.03,.2020
[1] Totsd autstanding dues of micro ond small enterprises . -
Lj-__‘!‘r-ml naitstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small Erlerprises 16,56 9,45
[Refer Noie 28]
16.56 9,445
r_1_!' | BORROWINGS (Oifer than Defst Exrurittes) st amortised cost - [ in Lakhs)
| Particulars As at 31.03.2031 | Asat 31.03.2020
Térm Lanns = =
Fram Other Parties - Unsecured E.98 4.(H)
B.98 . (kD
“Haote:
|i} Details of BEORROWINGS | As at 31.03.2021 | As at 21.03.2020 |
a) BORROWINGS ‘IW‘I-'I:F than Debt SBecurities m ]I:I.ﬂlu. f B.98 4,00

L] EGRRD'F-'DTE‘-? [Cther than Debr Secirities) outside India

i) The C-umPan}' has defiulted in the qu}'muntudmmm af " (86 lakhs (Previous Year - 0.32 Lakhs) tu its lenders.

i) Detadls of repayment such as terms of Tepaymont, lerest | riste and ameunt

As at 31.0:3.3031

Rate of Interest Terms of Repayment i Amaunt
Dutstanding
7.5 p.a, The Repayment of the entire fecility shall be made on 3121 March, 2021, 4
Crmmipeanded
Carterly . n _—
0.0 The Repaymeent of the entive fecility shall be made an 3151 March, 2022, 4 OR
As al 31.03.2020
Rate of Interest Terms of Rupayment Amount
e _Eutu.'l:nnding
7.50% p.a The Bepeyment of the entive fncility shall be medds on 3151 March, 2020, 4
Compounided
Cuaarterly

15 l OTHER FINANCIAL LIARILTIES

| in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 51.&3.2&21 As at 31.03.2020
Unpaid Dividend (HERE ] 0,08
Diues to Employess 7.A0 3.94
Director Femuneration Payabis 28.97 16,71

Interest sccoued and due on borrowings 0.55 nEs |
_Credit Balanes in Current Account - 17

aT.2a3 24.45

16 | Current Tam Linbilitics [Fat) [" In Lakhs)

Partioulars _As ot AL.0320F1 | As ot 91,03,3020

Provision for Income Tax [Ned of Advance tax) BT 1 ET

Taotal 2.87 ! 2.8T

| |

LT | FROVISIONS (" in Lakhs)

Partioulars “As at 31.08.3021

Liher Provismons

As at 31.03,2020

18 | OTHER NON FINANCIAL LIARILTIES [ im Lakha)
Particulars Asat 31,03 3021 | As at 31.03.2020
Statutory Liabilitics AN Efor 11.69 :
Total il 2 11.6%
.' = =15
|h|‘llh.t.|1l‘l||-||- "y
,l.
T ._-:.'q. oL 5“'
5 "l::' ‘lhﬂ- rd
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Frontier Capital Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for the vear ended March 21, 2021

19, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

" in Lakhs)
Farticulars A= at 31.03.2021 As ot 31.02.2030
Nos. Amount Nos. Amaount
AUTHORISED
Equity Sharca of § 10 coch with vating rights 2,00,04, 000 200000 | 2,00 00,000 2,000.00
m@umunle Redecrmable Preference Shares of - 1,000 50,000 500,00 50,000 500,00
2,00,50,000 2,500.00 | 2,00,50,000 2,500.00
ISSURD
Equity Shares of | 10 each with voling rights 1.67,62, 163 167622 1.67,62,163 1,676.22
— 1,67,62,163 167632 | 1,67,62,163 1,676.22
SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UF CAPITAL :
Equity Shares af 1 10 each with veling rights 1,67.62,163 167622 1,67 62,153 167622
1,67,62,163 1,676.22 1,67,62,163 1,676.22
4} Reconciliation of number of shares and amount sitstanding at the begnning and at the end of the year;
Particulars Asat 31.03,.2021 As at 31,03,2020
Hos, Amaunt Hos. Amount
Equity Shares
AL the beginming of the year 16764163 1,676.28 2 62 L6 ST
AUd: lssuance of Eguity Shares on Conversion of 1% - 1.40.00,000 T A00.00
| Campulsoriy Convertible Preferencs: Sliaies
Add:  Shares issoed during the year on  Preferentin - = 35,00,000 250,00
Slbntmeeni
Outstanding at the end of the year 1.67,62,163 1,676.22 | 1,67,62,163 1,676.22

_':' Terms/rights attached to Equity shares

The Compatiy has anly ane ciass of eguity shares having & par value of © 10 et share. Each helder nl"ﬂl:ll.llt}' shades is
enttitled to ooe vote per share, In the event of Uquidation of the Campany, the holders of egulty shares will be entitied o
repeive the remalning sssets of the Company, after distribution af all preferential ameownts. The distribution will b in
proportion 0 the number of equity shares held by the share hoktecs. Dividend declared towsrds equity shares will be subject
to the mpproval of sharchelder in the Annel General Mesting,

| The Company has niot proposed any dividend for the vear ended March 31, 2021,

B} Details of aharcholding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars A# at 31,03.2021 Az at 31.03.2020
Haa. % holding Nos, % holding in
L. in the class the class
Inirnitable Capital Finance Private Limited L,15,66,610 e, EH 1,15.66,610 HE.00
M. Anirudh Bhawalin 0,326,500 553 0,.26.900 553
Mir. Anul Brsagwat 22 40,000 13,36 T2 40,000 13.36
Mr. Vinay Kalantri 19,650,000 “11.68 15,60,000 11.69

As per records of the Company, moludimg its register of shareholters,; members ad other declaralions recelved fom
shareholders regarding benefivial interest, the abeve shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

&) Details of shares held by Holding Campany

Particalars As at 31.03.2031 An at 31.03,2020
Kos. % holdlng Hos. % holding in
in the class the class
Equity Shares of © 10 cach
Enimitahle Crpital Finance Private Limited 1,15,66,610 0,00
1,15,66,610 69.00




Frontier Capital Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for the yvear ended March 31, 2021

d) Aggregate number of Fully Pald Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each allotted by way of Bonus In the perind of B years
Immedlstely preceding the Balanoe Sheet dote:

Particulars 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2018.19 261520 2020-21
Mo} (fios.] (e, | {Nos.) [Noa.) I
| Equity Shares [ 10 Esch) 17,163 : . E -
| ). Pursuant to & resalution approved by the sharcholders by way of postal ballot/ eleotronis voting, during the Last Year:

i] The existing authorized share capital of - 25,00,00,000/ - divided into S0,00,000 equity shares of ~ 10/ esch and 2,00, 000
Non-Convertible Redesmabls Preference Shares of * 1K/~ each bad been reclasslied info * 2500,00,000/- divided into
2,00,.00,000 equity shaves of * 10/~ each and 50,000 preference shares of ~ 1,000/- each and clanse ¥ of the Memorandum af
Aszociation had been altered accordingly.

ily The rights, terms end conditions of the fully paid up preference share capital of the Company Being 1,490,000 (.01% Non-
Canvertible Redeemphle Preference Shares of © 1,000 each [NCRPS) aggrogating to Bs. 14.00,00,000/ - had been slterod /varied 1o
140,000 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Redetmabile Preference Shates of the Company (CCFS] of © 1,000/ - each amounting to
B=. 14,00,00,000/- and thereafter converted with immediate effect into 1,40,00,000 equity shares of * 10/ each by way of
preferential alletinent besis in due compliance with section 42, 48, 55 and 620llic] and other applicabile provissons of the
| Companies Act, 2013 and mules framed therewnder.

Shares which had been converted

Statutory Reserves and Generad S, el
il ¥ auil Resery

cj Equity Component of Compound Finanetalinstrument representa the amount of equity part of the Canvertible Freferonce
! ) vy during the Financial Year 201550,
d] Retained Earnings are the profifs and losses shi the company has earmed [ ineutred il date, less any transfers ta th o

20, OTHER EQUITY [ In Lakha)
Particolars As at 31033021 | As at 31.03.2020
Etatutary Resceve [Rofer Note a)

Balanee at the bepinming of the vear 2523 580,23
Add: Ameunt bansferred om retained eamings = .
Closing balanee at the end of the year B9.23 8223
CGeneral Reserve |Refer Note b)

Ralence at e beginning of the year 11.86 11.86

| AL Amount transterred from retained CRfnkps - -
Closing balases at the ond of the year 11.86 11,86
Equity Companent of Compound Finaneisl Instrument (Refer Note of -

Balance at e beginning of the year S11.3h 011,36
Add: Ampunt trensferred from retadned earnings - -
Closing balates at the end of the year 911,36 olL.36
Retained Earnings (Refer Note d)

| Balance at the beginning of the year @A81.47 [1,853.33]
Profit / Loss for the year 16453 .04
Lems:

?‘-’ﬁ-.nﬂn o Statutory Reseres 2 =
Transfer ta General Reserve - I -
Closlng balance at the end of the year [2,566.20) l (2,481.37)
Totsl Other Equity [1,553,T5) | (1,465.92)
Al STATULLTY restrve represents the ressrve creatied as per Section A51C of the RAI Act, 1934, pursuant to which a Non-Banking
Fmencial Company shall create a reserve fund and transier thersin & sum not less than twenty per cent of its net prodit svery
year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit end Loss sceount, before any dividend is declored.

B} The general reserve 15 @ free peserve, retamed om Group's profits and can te wtilized upon faiflling certain conditians in
eocordance with statute of the relevant Act,

J 131 MULRATA =]

. Ik |
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21 | REVENUE FROM OFERATIONS

; [ in Laldes)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
X 31.03.2031 I1.03.3030
(i} Interost - on financial assets measured at amortised cost
-Loatg 47.28 21.99
Tatal ja) 27.28 21.9%

al Due to Company's aatime of business and e
any difference between the amount of revenue e

type of conbtracts enbered with the customers, the company does not have

cognized in the statement of profit and bes and the contracted price. =)

22 | OTHER INCOME
= = > " in Lakhay
Farticalors Tear ended Year ended
: i 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
| Liahilities no longer roguired written back B 5646
|| Feversal of Contingent Provisicns Against Siandard Aewets | - 0.01
|| mterest an Income Tax Refumd : 4.83
Reveran! of Harl Debds d.509 -
3.39 61.40
| 23 | FINANCE COBT
[ in Lakha] |
Particulars Year ended Year ended
| PRt a1.03. 3031 31.03.2020
Interest on financial lalikities measured st amartised cost
-Dieit Secitrities 2 2353
-Boprowings Other than Debr Securitics 0.3 {0, 30 =]
|_Chers
| -Interest on TDS 0.85 0,33
— r 118 3466 |
_24 | EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENGES
[ In Lakhs)
Farticulars Tear ended Year ended
= 31032021 31.03,2030
Salaries, Bonus and Incentives 19,13 18,71
19.13 18.71 __J
25 | OTHER EXPENDITURE
[ in Lakhaj
Particulars Tear anied Year ended
81.03.20:31 31,03.2020
| Rates & Tres L1E 1.85
Legal and Frofessional Charges 3.22 16.94
Directors Sitting Fees 4.8 5.40
Auditors' Remuinerntion:
| For Audit Fees 295 295 |
| For Other 2andees ([Including LE Feeg 1.18 1.18
| For Remmbursement of Expenses - - =
Bad-Dhelits g - 393
Manpawer Hire Charg=s . 1.481
Ligting & Custodial Fees X365 a-68
| Travelling and Conveyance 0.0 2,20
| Bank Charges , 0.02 0.0
| Membership & Subscription .06 0.15%
Office Expenses 0.03 0.26
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses (L56 1.9
Late Payment f Filing Charges. [BSE & Others) 1.75 1.86
Impairment Provision / Allowances - Loans TH24 %
[Mensured al Amootised Cost) i
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.67 0,55
[ Total 05.42 42.12
—
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statément for the year ended March 31, 2021

a6 Enmmmam

[ in Lakhs)
FParticulars 5 Year ended Yoar ended
31.03.2021 A1.03,2020
Profit After Tax I in lakhs) B4.ED 33,03
Pregerence Dividend Prid (inclhadig tax thereon) | lnkhs) == .
| Profit After Tax Attributabls to Equitly Shareholders (| 1o lakhs) 5483 [628.0H)
Weighted Avernge Number of Equity Shares |Basic) 167,63 100,00
Adili Dilutive Efects - - |
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Diuted) 167 62 L0000 |
Earnings per Share - Basic [ | 10.51] i6.28)
Earnings per Share - Dilated 0 ) {0.51) 6. 28]
Face Value Per Shere [1 ) 10 10
Moke: Iil

Earnings per Share calculations are dome in sccordance with fnd A% 33 “Esrnings per Share™,

27 | INCOME TAX RECONCILIATION

The tax charge shown in the statement of proft and loss dilfers from the tax charge that would apgly if &l profits bad been
charged at Indin corporate tax rate, A reconciliation between the tix expense and the accounting profit multiphied by
| Indiz’s domestic tax rate for (e years ended 3 Lst March 2021 and 51at March 2020 is, as follows:

[ in Lakhs)
fLo= 3
Particulars Year sndesd Year ended
ai.o3aoal 31.03.2020
Actounting prafit before tax from continuing operations b4, N.AL
Income tax tate of 26% (March 31, J000; 260 x HIL ML
Effects of: '
Impact of deduwetion w7 s 354110 NIL HIL
_ar..'h:r Adjustments
Frovisian for diminotion @ investment ML HIL |
Income Tax Expense E-;n.pl-:rt:d in Statement of Profit and Loss . MIL | ML

The eifectve INCome tax rate for G 1st March 2021 15 200 (3 15 Merch J020° 369,

26 | MICRD, SMALL & MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

Hased an and to the extent of the Information receved by the company from the suppliers during the yesr regacdimp their
status under the Micro, Bmall and Medium Eoferprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) and relied upon by the
auditgre, there ard no amounts doe to MEME a8 61 318 Mareh 2021 and o8 at 30ss March 20340,

The relesant particulars are furniahed belovw

Particulors | As at 31.03.2021 | As st 31,03.2020
Frifwdpal amount due to suppliers under MEMED Act, a8 at the vear end. |

] MIL NIL
| Dmtezest accrued and due to suppliers ander M3MED Act, oo the abuove amaunt as at | MIL NIL
| the yeat cod, |
Payment mle to suppliers [other than interest] beyond the appointed day, during \ MIL NIL
the year, :
| [mterest pai suppliers under MEMED Act [other than Ssction 16), | NIL
1

Interest paid to suppliers under MEMED Act [Section LE). Il

Interest due and payahls ta supph der MSMED Act, for peyments already made. | NIL
Litesest accrued and rcmni:ull'?p paid el the vear cnd to sepplers under MEMED KL
3 iy LW\ 1]

e T Tl =1 o
| ‘:l:l KOLKATA p=4
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for the vear ended March 31,2021
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29 | BEGMENT INFORMATION

income fAxes are managed on & entity as whole basis and are not allocated to apernting sepHEns.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of financing, All the activities of the company revohve srownd the maln
buziness. Further, the Company doss not  heve any sepurote  geographic  segments  other  then  India
The Chief Operating Decision Malcer (CODM) monitors the operating results of its business nits separately for malking
decisions about resparos allocation and performiasce assessment, Bepment performancs is evaluated based nn Operating
profits or losses and b8 measured consistently with operatng profits or losses in the financial statements, However,

Information shout Major Customers as Regquired by PARA 34

comprny's fatad revemue,

Revenue from One custemer of the COMPARY 15 825 Lakhs |{Previous Year © 21,99 Lakh| which {8 more then 1086 ol the

40 | RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

List of Felated Partics
= Flalding Comgpany @ Inmiteble Capital Finance Pet, Lid. {[CFFLj

* kay Managerial Personned:

a} br, Hemendranath Rajendranath Choudbany (HROC)
b Me, Usha Sundar Dyengar [T

G Mr. Ashodc Katra [AK)

d} Mr, Andkot Naresh Prabhu (ANF)

* Enterprise where individuals referred |n above poing have sigmficant influence:
al AW Auto Componensgs Lid - (AA0CL)

b Fromtier Digital Technologies Privats Lad - [FOTPL)

] Biconia Eatate Private Lid - (REPL)

Hote:
Related party relationships are as identifled by the Management and relisd upos by the Anditors

The following transactions were carried out with related parties In the ordinary couras of business,

e [ = l-l“_llJ
FARTICULARS Halding EMP INDIVIDUAL HAVING CONTROL Total
Company AND RELATIVES OF SUCH
INDIVIDUAL AND ENTERFRISES
IN WHICH THEY HAVE
SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE
ICFPL HEC | m | aAx AACL | FDTPL | REPL
| Imcomeg §
Other Ineatne - . - | - - - .
i i) i~ {-i f £ i
Liatdlitees no longer - B . = - = X -
pequired writicn back 55 007 {4 i I ] i ) 5600
Expenditire |
Interest an Borrowing - - | - . 2 . 0.30 0,30 |
L £ - [ i) i ! LA (.30
Dlirectors’ Bitting Fews : - 60 | 1.60 1.60 . - 4.80
i [+ (1.80) | {1.80) [1.B0) [ &) [5. 240}
rrowin
|_As ae vear end : - - - ¥ - .00 4.00
H ) ) i i) [.00) {4.00)
Interest Acersed apd
| Due on Borrowings
| Payebile a5 at year end [ * - . - . : ] 0.E6
H i 5| i i~ i 055 0.38)
Dircctors' ]
eration Payabil (A —
Payalile gs at year end - am o7 - =
s i f15 i) - i
/ =
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for the vear ended March 31, 2021

Remuneration to key Managerial Personnel I [ in Lakhs)
Mature of Transiclion 21.03-2021 | 21-03-2020
Ehort Term Employes Beneofits 19,13 1871
Post employment Benefits = .
DOthers - "
1913 1871
31 | CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for) | 31.03.2021 [ 31.03.2020
tit Comtingent Lighilities shall te classified as:
{8] Claims against the company net seknowledged as debt; NIL R
b} Guarontees excluding financial gearantees; and ENE NIL
| 5} Other money for which the company is cantingently Liabie ML NiL
&) Commilments shall be classified ws:
i) Estimated amount of conbracls remaining 10 be executed on capital MIL MIL
account end nol provided for
1B} Uncalicd liability an shares and other investments pasily paid, ML HIL
{e} Other commitments 1u-pIEl:iI:|-' MATITE], HIL ML 1
32 | CHANGES IN PROVISIONS T in Lakhs)
Particulars A% ot Additional | Utllisatlon/ Ag at
31.03. 2020 Frovislon Favarsal SL03.2021
Frovision fw Contingencies - - - -
Impairment Provision / Allvwanees - Loans . 7o.24 . Tha
[Measared af amartised Cosl) 1
Farticulam As ot Additianal UtiHsation) As at
01.04.2019 | Provision Reversil S1.03.3020
Proviston for Conlingencics | od - j0L) -
| a3 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The company maintains an actvely managed capital base 1o cover ks inherent in the business, meeting U capital
mdequacy requirements of Beserve Bank of India (RBI), maintain strong credit rating and Reaithy capitml ralios b order
o support business and maximise sharchokter value. The slequacy of the Cogmpany's capital is monitored by the Board
using, EATICARL other meAslieE, the repulations insuel by BB
The company manages its capital structere and makes sdjustnents to it according to changes. in economic conditions
and the risk charpcteristics of its activities, In order to maintain o adjust the capital structuse, the Company may
adjust the amount of dividend payment to sharehodders, retum cagital o sharcholders or ssuc capilal secu rities.
The company has complicd in el with the capital requirements prescribed by BE] sver the reported period.

o] Risk Managemisnt

The compary has put in place o robust risk menegement frumewark to promaote @ proactive approach 10 repocting,
evalunting and reselving risks associated with the business, (Hven the nature of ke business, the comgaily 8 engaged
in, the risk Frrmewack recopnizes that there is uncertainty in creating and sustaining vabee &5 well as in identilying

oppartunities. Risk management is therefore made an integral part of the samfsany's effective mansgenent ACTCe.
i sment Fr, “The company's rsk managenent framework is based on fa) clear understandong, and

jdentification of varisys-nsks-{h) fisciplined ik assessment by eveluating the probability and impact of each risk |

Megsurement and foaditortng of Tishks by establishing Key Risk Indicators with thresholds for all eritical risks, it

adequate review mechigmism, o manilor and control risks,

L
L1 I}_: : .-__,." s _::ll . :
§ - N Y #
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hotes to the Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 21, 2021

The compeny has a well-established nisk reporting and monitoring framework, The in-house developed risk momitoring
tocl, Composite Risle Index, highlights the mevement of top critics] risks. This pravides the level and direction of the
tisks, which are arrived of based on the tws lovel risk thresholds for the identified Eey Fisk Inilicaters and are aligned o
the overall company's risk appetite ramewack approved by the board, The comgiary also developed such risk reporting
and monltarmg mechanism for the dsks mt buasiness J wertical level The company ldentifies and mondiors rsks
preriodically, This process enables the company te reasssss the fop critical risles in 8 changmg envieonment that nesd g0
be fomised o,

Risk Governanor soucture; The Company’s rslke governance structure operates with o clearly laid dowmn charter and
senios management directlon and eversight. The board eversses the risk management process and manitors e risk
| profile of the company direcily as well as through o board constituied risk mATEREI L CrumEmities,

The rizk manegement division bas established & coanprehensive risk management frameworle across the business and
provides appropriate reports on risk exposures and mnalysds in its pursait of creating awarencss across the compaiy
abiont rigk management, The key risks faced by the company are credit risk, liguidity riske, interest rate dske, operational
risk, reputational and regulatory risle, which are brosdly classified as credit risk, market sk, eqierativnnl rial, and

| Birjuicsty risk. |
b Credit Risk

Credit sk arises when 8 borrower s unable (o meet Gnancial abligntions to the lender, This could be either becanse af
wrang asscssment of the borrower's payment capabdlities o due to uncertainties in firture. The efeckve management of
credlt  risk requires the  establishment  of  appropriate credit | Tisk pabicies and  processes,
The company has compaehensive and well-defined credit policies whick encdifipass credit approvel process for afl
businesses along with guidetines for mitigaring the risks associated with them, The appradsal process inclodes detadled
Tizk assessment of the bocrowers, physical verifications and feld visits, The company has a robust post sanction
menitering process to identily credit portfolio trends and terly waming zignals. This enabbes it to implenent fecesmary

chanpes to the credit pobey, whisteyer ﬂ-aerwd_m*iﬁm
¢} Market Risk

Market Risk is the possihility of loss arising from changes in the value of a inancial matrument as A resuli of changes in
macket variables such as interest rafes, exchange rates and other asset prices. The company’s expesure io market risl
is @ function of asset liabiity mansgement activities, The cornpany is exposed W interest rate risk and Hquidity ek
Ehe Company continuously monitors thess risks and manages them throiigh appraprisie risk Hmits,

d| Concentration of Blsk/Exposury

Concentration of credit risk anse when a number of counterparties ar exposures have comparable economic
characteristics, or such counterparties are engAged i similar Botivitics or eperate in same geographical area ar indusiry
sectog w3 that eolleetive ability 10 meet contructual ciligations s unifarmily affected by chenges i stonomiz, political o
other conditions,

The Concentration of rigk is managed by company for cach product by it= region and its sulsegments;

u] Operational Risk

Operational risk |s the risk of loss resuiting from inadequate o fked inrermal processes, people or syslems, or from
external Vel
Ihe operational risks of the company are mansged through comprebensive internal  eontrol gystems  and
procedures  and  key back up processes. In order to farior sirengthen the contrel framework and efectiveness, the
company has established risk control sell- assessment to identily process lapses by way of énception reporting. This
ennbles the managerent to evaluate woy areas of operational risks and the process adequately mitigate them on an

|_ongoing basis.
f) Liquidity Risk

Ligquedity risk is defmed as the sk thet the company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
Gnencial lnhilitles  that are settled by delivering cash or another Gnancial paset, Ligguwirlity risk arises becsuse of the
pessibility that the company might be unable te mest its puyment ablipations when they fall due as a result af
mizsmatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances, Buch seenarios eould acer
when funding needed for illiquid meset positions is not avadable o the company on acceptable terms. To Hmit this sk,
mangement ks arrangsd for diversified fonding seirces and mdopied & palicy of avadling funding in line with the tenor
and repapment pattern of its receivables and monitors future cash flows and liguidity. The compaty  has develapid
internul contrM processes and contingency plans for managing Houidiny risk:

34 Falr value of nancial instroments not measored ot fair valie
Set out belew is o comparisan, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair valies of the company & inancial
instruments thit are not carried af feir valie in he batance sheet. This table does st include the fuir values
| of non-linancial assets and pon-financial lishilitics,

[ In Lakhs) |
Patizcalars 31.03.2021 AL.03.2020
Carrying | Fair Valus Carrylng | Fair Value
value walie
Finnncial Assots -~
Cash and Cash Equivalents 036 | oae 023 0,23
Bank hakances other than Cash and Cash Hguivalenis a4 .43 (144 ) 04
Loans 2500 22500 271.59 271.00
T E o™
Foxr =R
—_— — ———

-

%{‘-_ Lot .
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| Other Financial Assets .54 .54 .79 .74
Total Financial Assets 226.39 224,34 273.45 . 27345
Payables |

| {i} Trade Pryobles 2029 26,49 18.54 | 13.54

= {ifl Qther Payabiles 10.50 16.50 940 | 940
Harrowings (Other than Debt Secunitics) .08 4.0% 4,00 ! 4.00
Diber Financial Limbilities BT a7 R 45 | 445
Total Financial Liahilities 85,31 849,31 26,48 G5

The Manageniett assessed that cash and enash equivalents, bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents, Loans, Dther
financial assts, payabies, Bomowings and other linancial Batdlities approximaics their carying amount largely due to short
tere matnrities of thess instnuments.

The fmir vahse of the financial assets and lsbdites s inghaded st te ameunt st which the Drstrument coubl be exchanged in o
current iraneaction between willimg parties, other than m a forced or iquidation sale, The following methods and assomptions
were used o estimate the fair vahues ol Bnancisd assets or labilitkes disciosed under level 2 category.

1] The fadr value of loans have estiosbed by discounting expected future cash flows gaing discount rete squel 0 the raie near w
the reporting date of the comparabde product,
i) Th Fadr value of beorawimpgs other than debt securities and subordinated liabilities have estimated by discounting expecied
future cash flows discounting rate near to report dare based on onnparable fate § meckel observable data,
Darivative finemicial instruments

There have been no transfers between the level | and Jevel 2 during the period,
b Summary of Financial assets and liabilitivs which are recognised at amortised cost

{ in Lakhs)
Patieulars As ot
A1 033021 | 31032020
Financial Assets B
ash and Tash Equivalels 0,36 | 0,23
Bank halanogs other than Cash and Cash Equivalents T 044
| Loams Z25.00 | #71.00
Dther Financial 4ssets o4 { .79
Finangial Liabilities -
Baotrooings (Dther Gian Dbt Secaribies) E.089 | 4,00
Lither Financial Liabitiries a7.8 | AikA5
2] Fair Value Hietarchy
The fullowing table provides the foir valee measurement hierarchy of the Company s assets and labilites
— {* In Lakhs)
Paticulars A at 31-003-2021 A= at 31-3-2000
Carrying Level of Carrying Lewel of
Amaount Input nsed in Amount Inpat weed In
= = Levell | Leveld Levell | lewvel3d
Finansinl Asseia
At Amortised Cost .

. | .Cask and Cash Equivalents 0.3 - - 0.23 - E
Bank balanees ather than Cash and Cash 0,4 3 - [ . e
Equivelents
Loons 2500 - - 271.949 - -
Other Financinl Assets 0. 54 | - - 0.749 - -
Finangial Liabilities
Al Amortized Cost
Trade Payables 26,49 . : | 1854 : -
Other Payahles 16.56 . . 046 :

Eorrowings {Oher thes Debil Secubises) 3.0k - = ! A0 m R awm
Other Financial Liabilities 37.28 - - | 2445 - -

Thers hove been no transiers bereesn different levels during the period,
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as l MATURITY ANALYSIS [ in Lakha)
Particolars Amount Within 12 TAfter 12
manths menths
As on March 3T, 20321
Financial Assets
Crsh u.|1.|:|. I'_‘n.-lh Enuivakents II 35 30 -
| Bank balances other than Cash and CAsh Buvalenis 34 T ¥ il
| Loans 225 (W) EE5.00 -
CMher Finansal "“‘“‘5—. 054 i B -
Tolal Financlial Assets 20,3 T26.34 -
Noa-Finanelal Asasts
| Current tay assets (Mer) 0,00 =
Oiher Non-Financeal Asaets - .
JEn-tni Non-Flnonclsl Asscta 0.00 - =
| Financlal Liabilities
Paynisies

[il Trade Payubles 26.49 640 -

{idl 'IIIE'uEr Payahles 16,56 16 EE -
Borrowings (Diher than Debl Securties) 4.95 B.O8 =
Orher Financial Liabilines VA8 37.28
| Taotal Financial Liakilitles 85 31 R5.31 1
Won-Finanaial Linbilltles Z |
Current Tax Liabilites (Mot 287 2.87
Provisions E 2
Oither Hon-Financial Liakdlitles 11065 11.69

| Total Non-Financinl Liahilities 1456 14.56

[* in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount Within 12 Afer 12
manths months

As on March 31, 2020 B
Financial Assats
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,3 .23 =
Bank balances oifver than Cash and Cash Equivilents 0,44 .44 -
Loanz 20104 71.949
Criber Financial Assets 0.1 0.79
Total Flnancial Assets 27345 ZT3.45
-unaFLnn.m:inl. Ansets
Eum:n.r Enx u.snrl;.'. 1H::}
| Cher 1 Hnﬂ-Fman:u! Asneis =
Tolal Non-Financial Assets - .

| Finaneial Liabilitios )
Pryahles

| i) Teale Payaiiles 18,3 18.54 -
| ] teher Pavahles .46 TS

Eogrowings (Other than Debt Sceurities] .00 4.0 =
(iiher Financial Liabilitics 24,45 24,45 =
Total Flnanelal Liakilities B .45 556,45 - E
Non-Financinl Lishilicies -
‘Current Tix Liabiities [Net) B 267 AT 2
Provisions - -

|_Other Non-Finaneial Liakilities 66X G, &1 -
Total Nop-Financiol Liabkilities .70 Q.70 -

Fy
i

@qf
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36 [ ANALYSIS OF FINATCIAL ASSETS AND FINARGIAL LIABILITIES BY REMAINING CONTRACTUAL MATURITIES
— " in Lalchs)
Farticulars Upta 1 1to3 Jtes | 6told 1to3 Fta b Mo Total
montk | monlhs | months | months FOars yoedars than 5
TOATE

As on March 31, 2021

_iE_lu.n..n:hl Asngoty
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.23 - . - - . - 0.23
Bank balances otlser than Cash oad | - 2 =3 = = = 044
gl Cash E;u:unlenta
Loarns 23500 - - . - - 225,00
Otiver Financial Assets - E 0,54 . £ - F 0.54
Tatal Hnmninl Asgets Q0L &7 - 0,34 = - | = - 226.21 I

Hﬂ:n.rl‘:lmmh.t AsEELE
13|J|‘:|::1'|.t [ amnets (et} n = + a - - B 2
[’l‘ﬂErlEl Flant and Equipmert - - - - - = - =
Diher Non-Financial Assets . % ] = i - = = =
Total Non-Finanolal Asseis - - = = = 2 . ; s
Finameial Liahilities
Fayahles

[i] Trade Paynbles : 26,49 - - - - . .49
jtl] Cher Payahles - 16,50 - - - - £ | 1450
Horrewings [Other than Debt - .00 = 4.98 . - . I
Securities] i

Other Financial Liabilites . 37.28 . 3 : . : 3726
| Total Financial Liabiiitics . 84,33 - #58  | 3 - - 80.31
Hﬂﬂ.—F:ln.l:m.-ll.l Liabilities

Current Tax Linhilttes [Net) - - = . 287 - - +.87
Erovisivns - s - s - - -

Oher Non-Financial Liabilithes 11.60 3 - . - - 11.69

Tolal Non-Financial Liabilities 11.69 - - - 287 - - 14.56

Farticulars Uptol [ 1103 | 3te6 |[6t0l1Z | 1103 Jto s More Total
month | months | months | months FUaArs Years than 5

TEOTS

Aa an March 31, _iM{l
Finaneial Assets
Crash Al Cash Equn'u]:l_:I:I 023 . = - a = - 0,273
Heanle balances atler than Crsh 0,44 - . . - . - (1.4

and Cash Equivalents
Losans - . 27 1.9 - s | = = FT1.00

Crther Elancial Asmets - = 0.7% 2 3 - - | myE
Total Financial Assets 06T . AT TR . | = = & 273 48 I

- | Moo-Finoncial Asasts
Current tax aascta (et} 2 . S E - = =
| Property, Plant and Equipment - - . . % i T
Cither Mon-Finoncial Asseis " E |
_Total Non-Finaneial Assets = . ] Z : . - o .
| Financial Liabilitles
Payables . [
[f] Trade Payahles - - 1854 | 3 - L - 18,54
[ii} CHkver Payabies - a [T = = & : TS
Barrvwings (Other than Dbt - - 4,00 = - . : =T
Seruirities)
Other Finamscial 'L.:u]nhu.:-: - . 24,45 =z . = - 3445
| Total Finanetal Lh.hil[tle! - . E&.45 ] = . - 55,4.5
| Non-Fiaancial Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilithes (i) - - - - =87 # - 2.87
Frovigiong - | B = i : - = %
T Nm-E‘i__nnnc'i.n] Liahilitdes — F GRS . | =
Total Non-Financial Linhilities AL L E = .83 = > a7 | =

% l:' -\-' ' = ..'LI ﬁ

III "'I l'l..lL."'l..':'- _|‘I| I:?l 'l'll:-:'
N

]

-
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 3 1,2021

COVID-19 pandemic has besn rapidly spreading throughout the werld, including India. Govermment in India has taken
significent measures to curh the spread of the virns including mposing lockdooms and restdctions o activites,
Conzequently, Company's offices hiad to be closed dewn far a considerable perad of time, including after the yvear end, The
Company is monitering the situation clossly taking mte secounl directives from e Covernmonis, Management bslioves
that it has taken into account all the pessible impacts of known events arizing from COVID-19 pandemic and the resaltant
lncidowns in the preparation of the Gnancial statermients including but nat limited to ts nesessment of Commpanys Lguidity
atid godtig concern, recoverable values of its fnancisl and non-foasacisl assets. Howevers, given the effect of these looldoams
on the overall economic activity and in particular on this industry, the impact assessreent of COVIR-19 00 ke abows
mentioned Enancial statement caplions is subdect to significant egtimation uncertainties given its nature and duraton anid,
stcofdingly, the actual impacts in future may be different from those estimated as ol e date af approval of these [inancial
stntements, The Company will continue 1o manitor BNy material changes to futire sconomic conditans and eongegquential
impAcs on its Anancial positiodn,

Disclosure  of Comparisen of Provison as per [RAC Norms smd  BCL Pursaant to RBl Circular, Vide
DNES PR COND. 100722 10, 106/2019-20 Dated Masch 13, 200 For the Year Ended March 31, 2021
(" im Lakha)
Assat Amseot Gross Impairment Hut u:.rq'lni Provisions Difference
clagsification | clpssification carrying allowanee amount required as betwegn
as per RE[ as per Ind AB | amount as per iprovision] per IRACP Ind AS 109
Forms 10w Ind As as required TOCmE provisions gnd
unider IRACP norms
Ind AS 106
- T 1 . T e —
[ 2] 3 ) (51 =13} - 3] i8] (71 =131 - 6]
Perlasriming
Branderd lape 1 - - = - =
Mon-
Ferforming
Azseta [NPA)
Substanderd Stage 2 S0, To. 24 225.00 7524 QLR R
Tiparbdal - Stage 3 - " Z - o
ko 1.' ‘I"a:l.r .
1-3 Years Stape 3 - - . = -
{Unsecured) .
More than 3 Sxmpe - - - . ‘
| Years
Loss Htame 3 . * x - =
Subtotal ol A0 2k T5.24 23600 76.24 0. 00
HFPA
Tatal Btpge 1 - & T -
Stage 3 0034 To3.2% 225, 7524 .00
Totsl 300.24 75.29 225,00 7524 o0

Daclosure On Moratorium - Cowld 19 Regulatory Package - Asset Classification Asnd Provisioning For The Year
Ended March 31, 2020 In Pursuant To The Notification Vide DOR.NO.EP.BC.63/21,04.048/20159-20 Dated April 17,
Q0

Farticulars _-"ﬁlﬂl-]
1. | Special Mention Accounts,” SMA Category loans whereln the moratorium was given __Lm#?liml_
2. | Amaunt of loan where assel cassihcation wes cxtended NIL
3. | Provisions made agrinst the assets m (3] @ 5 HIL
4. | Prowimions adfusied against (3] above MIL

W bl
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Annual Report
2020-2021

Information as required in terms of Paragraph 16 of Master Direction
ﬂ}'llf!_lltlll'? Impaftant Non-Deposit taking Company [Reserve Bonk) Dire

40

- Nen-Banking Financial Company - Non: |

ctions, 2016:;

|Figures in © in Lakhs)

Partlonlors Amount Amount
Outstanding Overdue |
Lisbilities Side : -
1) Loans and advances availed by the mn-banki;zg Gnamceal company inclusive ol
bntetest acorued thereon bt nor pedd:
Al | Dvteniures : Secured -
! Unseciired
[{Other than falling within the meaning of public deposits®)
bl | Deferred Credit =
_l:’l Term Loans 5
_dl | Inter Cerporgis Loans & Barrowings T
£} | Commercial Paper .
fi_| Ocher Logns 2 |
Figures in °
Assets Bide | l in Lakhs)
e Break up of Loans and Advances inchiding bills receivables [other then those
fischuded in [4) below] :
&l | Sccured
bl | Unescured 235.00
] Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets  counting towasds

AFC metivities

i | Lewse assets mcleding lease rentals under Sundry Debioss ;

&l Finance I.-:.nﬂs:

b Crperating Lease

it] | Btick om hire including hire charges under Sundry Debtors

A AsERTR Of Hire

| b Feposscased Assels

Other bans counting towards AFC activities
a Loans where assets have been repossessed

b _Loans ather than (6] abave

4 Break up of Investmenes :

..Cummt Investments (Inciuding Stock ﬁrﬂd"? a
| Gruoted ;

] Shares

I| Equity

il Preference

I3 Debentures & Ponds

o] Units of Mutual Funds

'§| Govermment Securities

:‘nl Dthers (Please Specify]

tl Prefevence

bl Debeniires & Bonds

cf Units of Mutual Fusds

d] Cewernment Becurities

e} Others - Fixed Depaosits

_Lang Term Investments |

uated :

Shiares -

il Equity

|- __‘_iﬂii_ Preferenos:

| b Dwbentures & Honds

] Unsts af Mutual Funds

di Government Sceurlthes

_&) Dihers [Pleass Spocify)

| Unquated ;

a] Shares ;
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Notes to the Standalone ¥ Irm:u,ral 'il'..:tl:r:'rrtt'nt 1'1:|: the yearended March 31, 2021 | 2020-2021

Annuoal Beport

 ———— T e — e

iy Equiry - ]

i Preference -
bj Diebentures & Honds =
] Units of Mutual Funds =
1) Government Secuniies -
| Dithers

Al Barrower proup-wise clussification o assets Onanced &5 o (2] and {3} abowe
|| [Figures in = in Lakhs)
| Category Basisficl Unsecured Total
1. Relmed Parties™™ :

s

al E1.|:I:|u:d.1u.n-=:
bj Companies in the sume groon
c} ¢ 1'."|'J.'|.-=r Fb:lnlrrl Partiecs - - -
9. Cther than Related Parties - 225.00 225K

| TGTAL 225.00 225 00
*"Related parties in terms of AS-LE "Related Party relationships” have been muﬁrrl by the mapagement & relied upon
by the Auditors.

5] Investors group - wise classificeticn of all invesiments (Current and Leng Term) in Shares and securities [both quosed

anid ungquicted]

{Figures in ~ in Lakhs) |
Category Market walue | Book '
{ Break up or | Value{Net of
Ei:v value or | provision)

1. Related Parties™:
a) Subsidiaries = ~

b Companies in the same group - -
cj Odher Belated Portizs -
[ 2. Other then Related Partes .

| TOTAL -

Mate: Invesinents whose market valive whereol wias nod availabie, have been conaclered at book value for the purpose af
colrubation of market vahae.

7l Diher Infermation

Particulars |IFigures s~

Lo

| a] Cross Hon - Performing Assets
1. Relared Pasties :
2. Other than Belated Parties 024
by Ht:t Mon - Perlorming Assels
. F=lated Parties =
2 Tither then Related Partics | @500
b Assets_Aquired in_ aatisfection of delt I =

aaaaa

41 | On consideration of prudence, Deferred Tax azset on bislness | capital lokses available under the Income Tax At h_“ not

been recopnized,
For A.C, Bhuteria & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chieertoresd Acesuretants Frontier Capital Limited

[CAT Firm RFegn Mo, 303105E

.-'_hl 'l S [‘.JH

.-'|I %

,-{ 7 N, Hemendranath Choudhary a}th Katra
,_ H'C] LEATA 12 Whaole Time Director Indepe ¢ Director
* .

f - ]I'in_'/{"- ._'-—'_'_'_-_-
I 1 )
Bikas Eumar Burnwal - \ﬁn Tyerigper Aniket Naresh Prabhe
Partpner, Membership Noc 311785 Directar Company Secradory & CFO
Date: 18.08,2021 Date: 1B.08.2021
Flace: Kolkata Flace: Maombai
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